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Corporate Information (Continued)
NAEVER(EE)
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Mission Statement
[ ]
RN =

Perennial International Limited is dedicated to maintain the high E#EBEERATHNIREEEER - BUSEIRAE
quality of its products, manufacturing processes and service to customers — B12 - A RZETA R BARNEM » BREIEEE
and to forge a worldwide reputation as a business demanding excellence 3£ EEEBZIRE - TE2 IR -

in all of its operations.
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Corporate Profile

%lﬁ%)

The Perennial Group, founded in 1989, manufactures and trades quality
power cord, power cord sets, cables and solid wire, wire harnesses and
plastic resins. The Group’s primary markets are America, Europe, Australia,
Mainland China, Japan and Southeast Asia where it sells to prominent
multi-national producers of electrical and electronic products.

Headquartered in Hong Kong, the Group employs approximately 1,150
staff worldwide involved in management, sales and marketing, shipping,
procurement, financial and accounting, research and development,
production and manufacturing. The Group considers its employees to be
its most important asset while its key values are quality, prudence and
integrity.
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Chairman’s Statement

EREHRE

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Perennial
International Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to announce the
audited consolidated financial results of the Company, together with its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31st December 2015.

The Group’s revenue was HK$401,669,000 (2014: HK$455,403,000).
Profit for the year was HK$11,688,000 compared to HK$18,917,000 in
2014. Earnings per share were HK$0.059 (2014: HK$0.095).

Final Dividend

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.02 per
share. The Group’s total dividend for the year 2015 amounts to HK$0.02
per share (2014: HK$0.04 per share).

The proposed final dividend is subject to approval of the shareholders at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting to be held on 9th May 2016
("2016 AGM"), is to be payable on 25th May 2016 to shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on 13th May
2016.

The register of members of the Company will be closed during the
following periods:

(i) from 4th May 2016 to 9th May 2016, both days inclusive and
during which period no share transfer will be effected, for the
purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ eligibility to attend and
vote at the 2016 AGM. In order to be eligible to attend and vote
at the 2016 AGM, all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration with the
Company’s branch share registrar, Hong Kong Registrars Limited
at 17M Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 3rd May 2016; and

(i) from 16th May 2016 to 18th May 2016, both days inclusive and
during which period no share transfer will be effected, for the
purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed
final dividend. In order to establish entitlements to the proposed
final dividend, all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration with the
Company’s branch share registrar, Hong Kong Registrars Limited
at 17M Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong not later that 4:30 p.m. on 13th May 2016.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
TREHE(E)

Business Review

The Group's turnover decreased by 11.8% to HK$402 million in this
financial year. The decline in turnover was mainly due to decrease in sales
of power cord products. In turn, the decrease was caused by less orders
placed by a major customer due to change in purchasing strategy of that
customer. Decrease in sales of power cord products reduced its Group's
sales proportion from 58% in 2014 to 55% in 2015. Thus, sales of power
cords and power cord sets, cable and wires, wire harnesses and plastic
resins accounted for 55%, 7%, 35% and 3% of the Group’s turnover
respectively.

Although the price competition was keen during the year, the gross
margin remained stable at 18.4% (2014: 18.5%) mainly due to usage of
new machinery to enhance productivity. The net margin decreased from
4.2% in 2014 to 2.9% in 2015. The decrease in net margin was mainly
due to increase in safety approval and certificate fees, higher depreciation
charges as a result of increase in fair value of land and buildings and
additional expenses to run the new factory in Dongyuan County, Heyuan
City, the PRC (“the New Factory”).

The New Factory already has an established production plant. The Group
has commenced test production of small quantity in that plant. The Group
has also commenced construction of a new production plant, canteen and
dormitories in the same land area. For details of the construction, please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated 13th October 2015.

On 6th July, 2015, the Company terminated the placing of shares due to
adverse market conditions. Originally, the Directors intended to apply the
net placing proceeds for factory construction, new investment opportunity
and general working capital. For details of the share placing and its
termination, please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 2nd
July 2015 and 6th July 2015, respectively.

The Group's operating environment is still challenging. The continual
decrease in copper price did exert pressure on the selling price of the
Group's products. Moreover, in 2015, the minimum level of wages in
Shenzhen City, the PRC was RMB2,030 per month, representing an
increase of 12.3% when compared with that of last year. Positively, the
deprecation of Renminbi during the year alleviated the operating costs in
the PRC.

The Group's factory operation is constantly subject to inspection and audit
by multinational clients. The factory inspection and audit cover the areas
of environmental protection, labor practices, health and safety and other
social responsibility affairs. The Group has dedicated teams to monitor
and improve the results of factory inspection and audit.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
TRERE(E)

Future Prospect

Although the global economic outlook in 2016 remains tilted to the
downside, the Group is still cautiously optimistic. The current year's
challenge is keen price competition and weak market demand. The Group
will adopt the traditional business strategy of boosting sales and cutting
costs. For the sales side, the Group has put more effort on deepening the
development of Japanese market in anticipation of more purchase orders
from that market in 2016.

Regarding to operations costs, the Group will increase the production
output in the New Factory so as to improve the absorption of fixed costs
and drive down the labor costs. Currently, the New Factory operates
below its normal capacity level and its fixed costs are not fully absorbed.
In 2015, the minimum level of wages in Heyuan City, the PRC was only
RMB1,210 per month which is more cost advantageous.

The construction of the new production plant is expected to be
completed in August 2016. In the short run, the Group will incur a higher
expenditure due to additional fixed costs in running the New Factory.
In the long run, the Group will reap the benefit of operating in a more
cost effective area. Financially, the Group has sufficient cash flows and
adequate reserves to withstand business risk and uncertainty.

The Hong Kong Stock Exchange has introduced ESG reporting and
published its requirements on risk management and internal controls.
These requirements are effective on 1st January 2016. In response, the
Group will engage appropriate external consultants to help the Group
fulfill these requirements.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

TREHE(E)

Corporate Governance

The Group is committed to safeguarding shareholders’ rights and
enhancing corporate governance standard. As a result, the Group has
established the Compliance Committee, Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee to adhere to the best practice.

Social Responsibility

The Group's factories are regularly subject to factory audit by multinational
enterprises. The factory audit served as a catalyst to enhance the Group's
standard on corporate social responsibility.

Moreover, the Group holds a strong belief in corporate social
responsibility. So the Group continues to participate in and support
community activities in both Hong Kong and the PRC.

Vote of Thanks

On behalf of the Board, my sincere thanks to our loyal shareholders,
partners and customers for their continuous support and to our staff for
their dedication.

By Order of the Board
Koo Di An, Louise

Chairman

Hong Kong, 15th March 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERENWR D

Liquidity and Financial Resources

At the end of December 2015, the consolidated short-term indebtedness
of the Group was approximately HK$45,237,000. The borrowings
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The bank balances and cash
amounted to approximately HK$66,560,000.

At the end of December 2015, the Group’s trade and bill receivables
balance was approximately HK$92,806,000, representing 23.1% of the
year's turnover of approximately HK$401,669,000. The Group adopted a
stringent credit policy to minimize credit risk.

The interest cover in 2015 was 16.8 times as compared to 26.2 times in
2014.

Capital Structure

As at 31st December 2015, the consolidated shareholders’ equity of the
Group was approximately HK$506,384,000, an increase of 2.7% over
that of the previous year. The debt to equity ratio, calculated by dividing
total liabilities to shareholders’ equity, was approximately 26.9%.

Capital Expenditure and Material Acquisitions
During the year under review, capital expenditures approximate to
HK$17,098,000.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31st December 2015, the Group’s trade and loan finance
facilities amounts to approximately HK$238,917,000, and of which
HK$181,000,000 were secured by legal charges over certain land and
buildings, and investment properties of the Group with a total net book
value of HK$152,990,000.

Segment Information

During the year under review, Hong Kong, America and Mainland China
continued to be the Group’s major markets, accounting for approximately
34%, 46% and 14% of the Group’s total sales respectively. The
remaining 6% of sales were generated from customers located in other
Asian countries and Europe.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BIEE N wm T (E)

Employees’ Remuneration Policy EEFBBUR

As at 31st December 2015, the Group employed approximately 1,150 full WRZ-ZT—RF+-_A=1+—08  KEBEZ2HERY
time management, administrative and production staff worldwide. The  1,150% 2B &8 « THEAEAS - AEE
Group follows market practice on remuneration packages. Employee’'s BHEE JHiZMEEBRMNTE - aREEABKREER
remuneration is reviewed and determined by senior management annually 38 - KB NRERNER  BFERAINETEEHH o K
depending on the employee’s performance, experience and industry S£BEH A NERELHKRE - B AE TIRHEEBE
practice. The Group invests in its human capital. In addition to on-job  4h - JR#I:] B TS B (S ¥ BE o

training, the Group adopts policies of continuous professional training

programs.

Foreign Exchange Exposure B 2= /3 By
All foreseeable foreign exchange risks of the Group are appropriately — ZNE£E FA A] 78 RIMNE @G O WA i BE S K& b -
managed and hedged.

Contingent Liabilities XREE
As at 31st December 2015, the Group did not have any material R-ZE—RFE+-HA=+—H  KEEWEEAHA
contingent liabilities. AaE e
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Corporate Governance Report
EEEREBE

Perennial International Limited is firmly committed to statutory
and regulatory corporate governance standards with emphasis on
transparency, independence, accountability, responsibility and fairness.

The Corporate Governance Code

The Directors confirm that the Company has fully complied with the
code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code")
attached to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) as Appendix 14, and adopted recommended best practices
set out in the Code whenever appropriate except Mr. Ma Chun Hon,
Richard, an Independent Non-Executive Director, was unable to attend
the Company’s annual general meeting held on 29th April 2015 due
to the business engagements. During the year, Ms. Koo Di An, Louise,
Chairman, was unable to hold a meeting with the Independent Non-
Executive Directors without the presence of the Executive Directors due to
other prior business engagements.

The Board

The Board'’s primary role is to protect and enhance long-term shareholder
value. It sets the overall strategy for the Group and supervises executive
management to whom the responsibility of managing the day-to-day
operation of the Group is delegated. In the course of discharging its
duties, the Board acts in integrity, due diligence and care, and in the best
interests of the Company and its shareholders.

The Board oversees the Company in a responsible and effective manner.
It has adopted formal terms of reference which details its functions
and responsibilities. Its main responsibilities include, but not limited to,
ensuring competent management, approving objectives, strategies and
business plans, ensuring prudent conduct of operations within laws and
approved policies, ensuring and monitoring integrity in the Company’s
conduct of affairs. Day-to-day management of the Group is delegated
to the Executive Directors or the officer in charge of each division who
are given clear directions as to his/her powers and are required to report
back to the Board. Functions reserved to the Board and delegated to the
management are reviewed periodically. The Directors, as members of the
Board, jointly share responsibility for the proper direction of the Company.
The Company has formal service contract with each Director setting out
the key terms and conditions of his/her appointment.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
rEERWE(E)

The Board (Continued)

The Board currently consists of eight (8) members whose details are set
out on pages 27 to 29 of this report. It meets quarterly and holds specific
meetings as and when they are deemed necessary. The Board held four (4)
meetings during the year ended 31st December 2015. Notices of Board
meetings were given to the Directors at least 14 days prior to the date of
the meetings with the agenda and any accompanying Board papers sent
at least three days before the date of the meetings. All Directors are given
the opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda. Minutes
of the Board meetings and committee meetings, recording in sufficient
detail the matters considered and decisions reached, are kept by the
Company Secretary and sent to the Directors or the committee members
(as appropriate) for their comment and records within reasonable time
after the meeting is held. They are also available for inspection by the
Directors at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director. A
record of the Directors’ attendance at Board meetings is set out on page
23 of this report.

The Group provides extensive background information about its history,
mission and businesses to the Directors. The Directors are also provided
with the opportunity to visit the Group’s operational facilities and meet
with the management to gain a better understanding of its business
operations.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company updates Directors on the latest developments regarding the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements from time
to time, to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices.

During the year, all directors of the Company namely, Messrs Mon Chung
Hung, Siu Yuk Shing, Marco, Mon Wai Ki, Vicky, Mon Tiffany, Koo
Di An, Louise, Lau Chun Kay, Ma Chun Hon, Richard, Lee Chung Nai,
Jones received regular briefings and updates on the Group’s business,
operations, risk management and corporate governance matters. Materials
on new or changes to salient laws and regulations applicable to the Group
were provided to the Directors. They also attended regulatory update
sessions and seminars on relevant topics. All Directors are requested to
provide the Company with their respective training record pursuant to the
Code.

The Board has separate and independent access to the senior
management and the Company Secretary at all times. The Board and
each Board Committee also has access to independent professional advice
where appropriate.
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The Board (Continued)

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance for the
Directors and the senior management of the Group for indemnifying
their liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The insurance coverage is
reviewed on an annual basis.

In order to reinforce independence, accountability and area of
responsibility, the role of the Chairman is separate from that of the
Chief Executive Officer. Their respective responsibilities are clearly
established and set out in writing. The Chairman manages the Board and
is responsible for ensuring that adequate information is provided to the
Directors in a timely manner and all Directors are properly briefed on issues
arising at Board meetings, while the Chief Executive Officer is responsible
for implementing strategies, policies, and for conducting the Group’s
businesses.

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, one-third of the Directors
that have served longest on the Board must retire at each annual general
meeting, and may offer themselves for re-election. Notwithstanding that
the Non-Executive Directors are appointed for a specific term of one to
three years, they are also subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years as other Directors do. To enhance accountability, any
further re-appointment of an Independent Non-Executive Director, who
has served the Board for more than nine years, is subject to a separate
resolution to be passed by the shareholders. In addition, Directors who
are appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment according to
the Company’s Bye-laws.

Pursuant to the requirement of the Listing Rules, the Company confirms
receipt of a written confirmation from each of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors for confirmation of his independence to the Company.
The Company considers all its Independent Non-Executive Directors to be
independent.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Board should present a balanced, clear and comprehensible
assessment of the Company’s and the Group’s performance, position
and prospects. The Directors should prepare the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis, with supporting assumptions
or qualifications as necessary. The Board'’s responsibility to present a
balanced, clear and understandable assessment extends to annual and
interim reports, other price-sensitive announcements and other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules, and reports to regulators
as well as to information required to be disclosed pursuant to statutory
requirements.
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Board Committees

The Board has established four (4) committees, each of them having
specific terms of reference, to consider matters relating to specialized
areas and to advise the Board or, where appropriate, to decide on behalf
of the Board on such matters. Details of these committees and their
principal terms of reference are as follows:

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 1st April 2003. Its current
members include three (3) Independent Non-Executive Directors and one
(1) Non-Executive Director, who are:

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. LAU Chun Kay (Chairman)

Mr. LEE Chung Nai, Jones

Mr. MA Chun Hon, Richard

Non-Executive Directors
Ms. KOO Di An, Louise

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the
Company’s website at http://perennial.todayir.com and the Stock
Exchange’s website.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing the Group's
financial and accounting policies and practices, making recommendation
to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
external auditors and any question of resignation or dismissal, their audit
fees, matters relating to the independence of the external auditors;
meeting with the external auditors to discuss the nature and scope of the
audit, and matters of concern when requested to do so by the external
auditors; reviewing the interim financial report and annual consolidated
financial statements before they are submitted to the Board; discussing
problems and reservations arising from the interim review and final
audit, and any other matters the external auditors may wish to discuss,
and reviewing the external auditors’ letter to the management and the
management’s response; considering any major investigation findings
on internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own
initiative and the management’s response to these findings and reviewing
arrangements which employees may use, in confidence, to raise concerns
about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters.

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year with the external
auditors. The Audit Committee held two (2) meetings during the year
ended 31st December 2015. An attendance record of its members at the
Audit Committee meetings is set out on page 23 of this report.
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Audit Committee (Continued)

During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the interim financial
report and the audited financial results of the Group for the year ended
31st December 2015 and the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group. The Audit Committee also reviewed the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control systems and made
recommendations to the Board.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 21st November 2005.
Its current members include three (3) Independent Non-Executive Directors
and one (1) Non-Executive Director, who are:

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. LAU Chun Kay (Chairman)

Mr. LEE Chung Nai, Jones

Mr. MA Chun Hon, Richard

Non-Executive Directors
Ms. KOO Di An, Louise

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing the
Group's remuneration policies, determining the specific remuneration
packages for Executive Directors and senior management, including terms
of salary, discretionary bonus scheme, benefits in kind, pension rights,
compensation payments and other long-term incentive schemes, and
making recommendations to the Board on remuneration of the Non-
Executive Directors and senior management. The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee setting out its authority and responsibilities are
available on the Company’s website at http://perennial.todayir.com and
the Stock Exchange'’s website.

The Remuneration Committee met once (1) in the year of 2015.
During the meeting, the committee members discussed the policy for
the remuneration of the Executive Directors and senior management,
assessed the performance of the Executive Directors and approved the
remuneration packages of the Executive Directors. An attendance record
of its members at the Remuneration Committee meeting is set out on
page 23 of this report.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 21st November 2005. Its
current members include three (3) Independent Non-Executive Directors
and one (1) Non-Executive Director, who are:

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. LAU Chun Kay (Chairman)

Mr. LEE Chung Nai, Jones

Mr. MA Chun Hon, Richard

Non-Executive Directors
Ms. KOO Di An, Louise

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing the
structure, size, composition and diversity (including, without limitation,
gender, age, cultural and educational backgrounds, skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board on a regular basis, reviewing the candidates’
qualification and competence and the policy on board diversity, assessing
the independence of the Independent Non-Executive Directors and making
recommendations to the Board on appointment and re-appointment of
Directors and the requirement on board diversity, so as to ensure that
all nominations are fair and transparent. Having taken into account the
above objective criteria, the Nomination Committee was of the view that
the Company has a diverse Board. The revised terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee setting out its authority and responsibilities are
available on the Company’s website at http://perennial.todayir.com and
the Stock Exchange’s website.

The Nomination Committee met once in the year of 2015. During
the meeting, the committee members discussed the procedures and
criteria which should be adopted by them in nominating candidates for
directorship and agreed that such criteria should include the candidates’
professional background, their financial and commercial experience and
their past track record with other listed companies (if any). Candidates
who satisfy the relevant criteria are then short-listed by the chairman of
the Nomination Committee before their nominations are proposed to
the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee subsequently
meets to select the final candidates and submit its recommendation to the
Board for its final approval. An attendance record of its members at the
Nomination Committee meeting is set out on page 23 of this report.
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Compliance Committee

The Compliance Committee was established on 25th November 2005.
Its current members include four (4) Executive Directors, one (1) Non-
Executive Director and three (3) Independent Non-Executive Directors,
who are:

Executive Directors
Mr. MON Chung Hung

Mr. SIU Yuk Shing, Marco
Ms. MON Wai Ki, Vicky
Ms. MON Tiffany

Non-Executive Director
Ms. KOO Di An, Louise (Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. LAU Chun Kay

Mr. LEE Chung Nai, Jones

Mr. MA Chun Hon, Richard

The Compliance Committee is mainly responsible for (i) reviewing
corporate communication issued by the Company so as to ensure
compliance in every respect with the listing requirements contained in the
Listing Rules; and (ii) reviewing transactions entered into by the Company
so as to ensure compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
applicable to the Company whether of Hong Kong or elsewhere. To
enhance corporate governance, the Compliance Committee was also
delegated with the responsibilities of (i) developing and reviewing
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and
making recommendations to the Board; (ii) reviewing and monitoring
the training and continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management; (iii) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code
of conduct applicable to employees and Directors; and (iv) reviewing the
Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in the corporate
governance report. Where necessary, the Compliance Committee would
seek professional advice in respect of the requirements of the Listing Rules
and other applicable laws and regulations so as to improve the existing
compliance procedures of the Company.
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Compliance Committee (Continued)

The Compliance Committee held one (1) meeting during the year ended
31st December 2015. During the meeting, the committee members
discussed the recent amendments to the Listing Rule relating to corporate
governance and resolved that more resources should be allocated
for meeting the increasingly stringent requirements of the regulatory
authorities. It was also suggested all future amendments to the Listing
Rules should be circulated to members of the senior management so
that they all understand and can help the Company to comply with its
obligations under the Listing Rules and seminars on Listing Rules updates
and corporate governance practices should be arranged for members of
the senior management and other interested Directors. An attendance
record of its members at the Compliance Committee meeting is set out
on page 23 of this report.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for internal control of the Group and for
reviewing its effectiveness. Procedures have been designed for
safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or disposition, ensuring the
maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable
financial information for internal use or for publication, and ensuring
compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations. The procedures
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material errors,
losses or fraud.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control system covering all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions and, in particular, consider the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Group's accounting and financial reporting function. Areas
for improvement have been identified and appropriate measures taken
so as to provide assurance that key business and operational risks are
identified and managed.

The key procedures that the Board has established to provide effective
internal controls are as follows:

(a) a comprehensive monthly management reporting system is in
place providing financial and operational performance indicators
to the management, and the relevant financial information for
reporting and disclosure purpose;

(b) management structure with defined roles, responsibilities
and reporting lines are established. Delegated authorities are
documented and communicated; and

(@) system and procedures are in place to identify, measure, manage
and control risks including liquidity, credit, market, business,
regulatory, operational and reputational risks that may have an
impact on the Group.
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External Auditors

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditors subject to endorsement
by the Board and final approval and authorization by shareholders of the
Company in general meeting. The Audit Committee assesses the external
auditors, taking into account factors such as the performance and quality
of the audit and the objectivity and independence of auditors. The existing
auditors of the Company are PricewaterhouseCoopers who were first
appointed in 1997.

External Auditors’ Remuneration

The Group was charged HK$1,230,000 and HK$947,000 by
PricewaterhouseCoopers for auditing and non-auditing services
respectively for the year ended 31st December 2015. The non-auditing
services mainly consist of taxation services.

Financial Reporting

The Board, supported by the accounts department, is responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the Company and
the Group. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Board
has adopted generally accepted accounting standards in Hong Kong and
complied with accounting standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Appropriate accounting policies have also
been used and applied consistently.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditors are set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 34 and 35 of this annual report.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’ and
employees’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of
all Directors, they had complied with the required standards of the said
code during the year.
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Shareholders’ Rights

The Board and management shall ensure shareholders’ rights and all
shareholders are treated equitably and fairly. Pursuant to the Company’s
Bye-laws, any shareholder entitled to attend and vote at a general
meeting of the Company is entitled to appoint another person as his proxy
to attend and vote instead of him. In addition, shareholders who hold
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company shall have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary
of the Company, to require a special general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition. The
requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must be signed by
the requisitionists and deposited at the registered office of the Company,
and may consist of several documents in like form each signed by one or
more requisitionists. If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date
of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half of the
total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting, but
any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three (3)
months from the said date.

Moreover, shareholders who hold not less than one-twentieth of the paid
up capital of the Company or not less than 100 shareholders shall have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary of
the Company, to put forward a resolution which may properly be moved
and is intended to be moved at an annual general meeting. The Company
shall not be bound to give notice of the proposed resolution or circulate
a statement with respect to the matter referred to in the proposed
resolution to shareholders unless (a) a copy of the requisition signed by
the requisitionists, or two or more copies which between them contain
the signatures of all the requisitionists, is deposited at the registered office
of the Company not less than six (6) weeks before the meeting in the case
of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution and not less than one (1)
week before the meeting in the case of any other requisition and (b) there is
deposited or tendered with the requisition a sum reasonably sufficient to
meet the Company’s expenses in giving effect thereto. If, however, after a
copy of the requisition requiring notice of a resolution has been deposited
at the registered office of the Company, an annual general meeting is
called for a date six (6) weeks or less after the copy has been deposited,
the copy though not deposited within the time required as referred to
above shall be deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes
thereof.
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Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)

Chairmen of the various Board committees, or failing the Chairmen, any
member from the respective committees, must attend the annual general
meetings of the Company to address shareholders’ queries. External
auditors shall also be invited to attend the Company’s annual general
meetings and are available to assist the Directors in addressing queries
from shareholders relating to the conduct of the audit and the preparation
and content of their auditors’ report.

For each substantially separate issue at a general meeting, a separate
resolution would be proposed. Resolutions put to the vote at any general
meeting (other than those on procedural and administrative matters) are
taken by poll. Procedures regarding the conduct of the poll are explained
to the shareholders at the commencement of each general meeting, and
questions (if any) from shareholders regarding the voting procedures
would be answered.

Investor Relations

The Company believes in regular and timely communication with
shareholders as part of its efforts to help shareholders understand its
business better and the way the Company operates.

To promote effective communication with the public at large, the
Company maintains a website on which comprehensive information about
the Company, its major businesses, financial information and particulars of
Directors are posted. The Company’s publications, including press releases,
announcements, annual and interim reports, shareholders circulars are
being made available on this website (http:/perennial.todayir.com).

In addition, shareholders who have any enquiries regarding the Company
may send their enquiries in writing to the principal place of business of
the Company in Hong Kong for the attention of the Company Secretary
who will then forward the same to the Board and/or the relevant Board
committees for response (where appropriate). The above policy will be
reviewed on a regular basis to ensure effective communication with the
shareholders.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
rEERWE(E)

Directors’ Attendance at Board, Audit Committee, EENEED BEREET HTMZES
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee, 2 .BEEEDT  BEREFEENRERD
Compliance Committee and General Meetings Z HEe 8%

Audit Remuneration Nomination Compliance
Board Committee Committee Committee Committee General
Meetings ES Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings

28  EHZE®  HMZEE « REZEE  ERZEE K=
g3 g4 g3 g4 g4 PN

Total number of meetings held ~ B ZE-ZT—1%E

during the year ended +-A=+—H
31st December 2015 EFEERBIIZ
eHOY 4 2 1 1 1 1

Number of meetings attended:  HE®E R :

Executive Directors HITES
Mr. MON Chung Hung ARERE

(Chief Executive Officer & (1TH#E#HR

Deputy Chairman) BZE) 4 NA TEF N/A T N/A TEF 1 1
Mr. SIU Yuk Shing, Marco FERE 3 N/A R B NA R Ef NA TEF 0 1
Ms. MON Wai Ki, Vicky AEBLL 4 N/A T N/A T N/A TNER 1 1
Ms. MON Tiffany AEREL 4 N/A T N/A T N/A TNER 1 1
Non-Executive Director FHITES
Ms. KOO Di An, Louise Bazat

(Chairman) (Z/E) 3 1 0 0 0 1
Independent Non-Executive ~ BYFHTES

Directors
Mr. LAU Chun Kay Bl 3 1 1 1 1 1
Mr. LEE Chung Nai, Jones FRBALE 4 2 1 1 1 1
Mr. MA Chun Hon, Richard EEELA 2 2 1 1 1 0
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Directors’ Report

ESHE

The Board submits their report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31st December 2015.

Principal Activities and Geographical Analysis of
Operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading of electric cable
and wire products. The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 28
to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by geographical
segments is set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

Five Year Financial Summary
A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last

five financial years is set out below:

EEgENREEEREREBEE—_T—0F+ A
=T RULEFEZEERGAMBRE

BREEXZB RS 20

ARARZ EBEBRREZER - ANBARI21E
HERBEERNEREMRE - WBARZEBH
RiF & M HRRMTE28 -

RERRIBHWREI D 2 AEBEBRBSNEARSS
BB HRANES -

AEMBHRE
TREMMEBEBEAFRZ EE  AERAEH

=

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

—T——F —ZT——F —T-—=F —TNF BT HE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FAET FAT FAT FAT FHExT

Revenue & 472,445 430,958 466,706 455,403 401,669

Profit for the year 2 F A 15,275 19,954 21,216 18,917 11,688

Total assets BEE 570,875 629,416 621,212 634,110 642,719

Total liabilities BEE (187,848) (178,245) (145,508) (141,037) (136,335)

Total equity B 383,027 451,171 475,704 493,073 506,384
Analysis of the Group’s Performance REBZEERBON

An analysis of the Group’s performance is set forth in the Chairman’s AEBZEERBEOMENECEEZFIH 2 TEHRE
Statement on pages 6 to 9 of this report. A e
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

EXxHmE(E)

Major Customers and Suppliers

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to the
Group's major suppliers and customers, classified by individual entity, are as
follows:

Perennial International Limited 1E&ES£E AR A T

IEEFRHER
REERAEEZ EEHERLES  AERERS
BRI EA LT -

Purchases R
— the largest supplier —AHIER
— five largest suppliers combined — AR IER

Sales tyE

— the largest customer —BRAEP
— five largest customers combined —hAREP

42.2%
71.4%

17.2%
62.9%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.

Results and Appropriations
The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 36 of this report.

The Board recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.02 per
ordinary share, totaling approximately HK$3,980,000.

Principal Properties
Details of the principal properties held for investment purposes are set out
in note 15 of the consolidated financial statements.

Share issued in the year
No new shares issued during the year. Details of share issued as at year
ended 31st December 2015 of the Company are set out in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

At 31st December 2015, the distributable reserves of the
Company calculated under Part 6 of the Companies Ordinance
(Cap 622) the Laws of Hong Kong amounted to HK$105,370,000.

Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
HK$2,095,000.
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BARRES%IA AR 2 R WER Lz 2
HERRE PP HEAEAER -

¥ER
HSEJ;WZIK%Z%%E%EE’Q‘ F36A ZiRAEERA -

EFEERRRBERARE L AR2ENL -
3,980,000 #7T °

FEYE
BEEREREZ T BYEZFBERGE
BIEE15 -

RERBTRE

REREJETHERA - FRARAR-B—1F
= A= t— B2 EBARARRE A HBRENE
19°

A5 Ik
R-F—AF+-A=+—8  REBEME622
BEAFGHIECHHE  ARAZ THD IR EE
105,370,000/ 7T °

CE Y

BARE R

B

REERAEE 2 & E1BBZE2,095,0008 7T °
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

BEEWE(E)

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws and there is no restriction against such rights under the laws of
Bermuda.

Purchase, Sale and Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, redeemed or sold
any of the Company’s shares during the year.

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, more than 25% of the Company’s
issued shares was held by the public as at 15th March 2016, being
the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report, in
accordance with Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules.

Analysis of Bank Loans and Other Borrowings
The Group's bank loans and other borrowings as at 31st December 2015
are repayable over the following periods:

On demand or not exceeding one year BIEfEEs —FNEE

BrBEER
AR ARMAL EEERER BT - MAE
RO SRR -

BE HERBEARQFZz LmRESE

AARNEEARFENBEEDEEMED - RAERE
FAMNBARGEEAFEABE BRI EEM
EA/NIAL) Sl

NBREFERE
REARBRARAEEMREHNERAMREEEMN
HoBE_T-RF=-ATAH  BAFRETAIR
BERATES  AAREETRNDBEBSZ - TH
BHAFRIE A LMRRIFES.08FZHE °

RTERREMEEDN
AEER-F-AF+ - A=+ BZRTERRE
fib A BRI TR SR IEIER

Trust
receipt loans

FRRBER

Total
BE
HK$'000
T

45,237

Bank loan
RITEM
HK$'000

FAT

17,917

HK$'000
FBT

27,320
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

EXxHmE(E)

Directors
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. MON Chung Hung (Chief Executive Officer & Deputy Chairman)
Mr. SIU Yuk Shing, Marco

Ms. MON Wai Ki, Vicky

Ms. MON Tiffany

Non-Executive Director
Ms. KOO Di An, Louise (Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. LAU Chun Kay

Mr. LEE Chung Nai, Jones

Mr. MA Chun Hon, Richard

Ms. Koo Di An, Louise, Ms. Mon Tiffany, Mr. Lau Chun Kay will retire
in accordance with clause 111 of the Company’s Bye-laws at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company and, being eligible,
all offer themselves for re-election.

The term of office of each non-executive and independent non-executive
director is not more than three years and subject to retirement by rotation
in accordance with the Company’s bye-laws.

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management

The biographical details of the directors and senior management of the
Company are set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Mon Chung Hung, aged 65, is the founder of the Group, the Chief
Executive Officer, the Deputy Chairman, an Executive Director, Authorised
Representative and a member of the compliance committee of the Board.
Mr. Mon has over 38 years of experience in the electric cable and wire
industry. He is responsible for the Group’s overall strategic planning and
policy making. Mr. Mon is a director of Spector Holdings Limited, the
controlling shareholder of the Company. He is also the husband of Ms.
Koo Di An, Louise and the father of Ms. Mon Wai Ki, Vicky and Ms. Mon
Tiffany.

Mr. Siu Yuk Shing, Marco, aged 56, is an Executive Director, Authorised
Representative and a member of the compliance committee of the Board.
He joined the Group in 1986. Mr. Siu has over 28 years of experience
in the electric cable and wire industry. Mr. Siu is also the Sales Director
of the Group and is responsible for sales of the Group’s products and
product development.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

BEEWE(E)

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. Mon Wai Ki, Vicky, aged 41, is an Executive Director and a member of
the compliance committee of the Board. She graduated from the Central
Queensland University in Australia with a Bachelor of Communications
degree. She joined the Group in 2004. As the Marketing Executive, she
participates in developing marketing strategies. She is the daughter of Mr.
Mon Chung Hung, and Ms. Koo Di An, Louise, and the elder sister of Ms.
Mon Tiffany.

Ms. Mon Tiffany, aged 35, is an Executive Director and a member of the
compliance committee of the Board. She holds a bachelor’s double major
degree in Economics and Management from the University of Sydney,
Australia, Diploma in Company Direction from Hong Kong Institute
of Directors, and “RSSGB"” certification from Six Sigma Institute. She
joined the Group in 2002. As the Marketing Communications Manager,
she coordinates marketing strategies and is also responsible for the
information system of the Company. She is the daughter of Mr. Mon
Chung Hung and Ms. Koo Di An, Louise, and the younger sister of Ms.
Mon Wai Ki, Vicky.

Non-Executive Director

Ms. Koo Di An, Louise, aged 64, is the Chairman, a Non-Executive
Director, the chairman of the compliance committee and a member of the
audit, remuneration and nomination committees of the Board. Ms. Koo is
a director of Spector Holdings Limited, the controlling shareholder of the
Company. She is also the wife of Mr. Mon Chung Hung and the mother
of Ms Mon Wai Ki, Vicky and Ms. Mon Tiffany.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Chun Kay, B.Sc., MBA, M.A., aged 67, is an Independent
Non-Executive Director, the chairman of the audit, remuneration and
nomination committees and a member of the compliance committee
of the Board. He joined the Group in 1996. Mr. Lau is a registered
professional engineer and holds a master’s degree in business
administration and a bachelor’s degree in electrical engineering from the
University of Hong Kong, and a master degree in history and a master
degree of Arts Course in Philosophy from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong. Mr. Lau is a Life President of the Hong Kong Electrical Contractors
Association, and a past President and current Secretary General of The
Federation of Asian and Pacific Electrical Contractors Associations. He
is also the Executive Director of the Hong Kong Federation of Electrical
and Mechanical Contractors. He has over 45 years of experience in
management and engineering.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

EXxHmE(E)

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management (Continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued)
Mr. Lee Chung Nai, Jones, aged 67, is a Non-Executive Director and
a member of the audit, remuneration, nomination and compliance
committees of the Board. Mr. Lee had over 34 years experience in
international trade in toys, among which Mr. Lee had also operated a
toys factory with 2,000 workers in China for 10 years. Mr. Lee had also
operated a subsidiary company in Hong Kong for a listed company in
Australia. Mr. Lee has his own toy company.

Mr. Ma Chun Hon Richard, aged 59, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director and a member of the audit, remuneration, nomination and
compliance committees of the Board. He joined the Group in February
2006. Mr. Ma has been practicing as a Public Accountant in Australia
since 1988. He holds a bachelor degree of Commerce from University
of New South Wales major in Accounting. Mr. Ma is an Member of the
Australian Certified Public Accountants and a Fellow Member of the
Taxation Institute of Australia.

Senior Management

Mr. Kevin Kwok Wah LEUNG, aged 53, LLB, MBA, MSC, FCPA, FCCA,
FHKSI, is the Chief Financial Officer of the Company. Mr. LEUNG is
responsible for financial and accounting management, corporate
governance and administration of the Company. He joined the Group in
2013. Mr. Leung'’s experience includes public listings in Hong Kong SAR,
United States and Singapore, financial due diligence and internal and
external audit work. Before joining us, he was a Financial Controller and
Company Secretary of a main-board listed company in Hong Kong and
was a senior audit manager at PricewaterhouseCoopers. He obtained
a Bachelor's degree (Honor) of Law from Manchester Metropolitan
University, a Master degree of Business Administration from Western
Ontario University, a Master of Science degree in Corporate Governance
and Directorship from Hong Kong Baptist University, an Advanced
Diploma in Specialist Taxation from the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), and is a Fellow Member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Securities and Investment Institute.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

BEEWE(E)

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management (Continued)

Senior Management (Continued)

Ms. Wong Wai Ping, aged 64, is the Group’s General Manager and is
responsible for sales and marketing activities. She joined the Group in
1993 and has over 41 years of experience in the electric cable and wire
industry and electronics and communications industry.

Mr. Au Sui Cheung, aged 37, FCCA, HKICPA, is the Finance Manager
and Company Secretary of the Company and is responsible for finance
functions and the Company Secretary work. He joined the Group in
2013, holds a Bachelor degree in Business and Business Administration
— Accounting and has over 14 years of experience in accounting and
auditing.

Directors’ Service Contracts

The Company has not entered into any service contract which is not
determinable within one year and without payment of compensation
other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Material Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements and Contracts that are Significant in
Relation to the Group’s Business

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company, its holding company, fellow
subsidiaries or its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director of the
Company and the directors’ connected party had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in Equity
or Debt Securities

At 31st December 2015, the interests of the directors and chief executives
of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO") as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as notified to the
Company were as follows:
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

EXxHmE(E)

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in Equity
Or Debt Securities (Continued)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company
(“Shares”)

Number of shares
KA EE
Corporate
interests

Personal
interests

ETOTY
interests

B AR

Rk

EE RS

Perennial International Limited 1E&ES£E AR A T

EERFETHRAERREABELES 2
s ()

RRFFR0.10BIT 2EBR (KR

Total interests
as % of the
relevant
issued share
capital
AR (A
B BITRA
2B

Total
interests

Other
interests

Hitfgss Mg

MON Chung Hung - - 145,158,000 - 145,158,000 72.96%
AR (note 1 ff3t1)

KOO Di An, Louise - 145,158,000 - - 145,158,000 72.96%
B (note 2 ff15%2)

LAU Chun Kay 138,000 - - - 138,000 0.07%
2R

note 1: The 145,158,000 Shares were held in the name of Spector Holdings
Limited, the issued share capital of which is beneficially owned as to 99.9%
by Mr. Mon Chung Hung and as to the remaining 0.1% by Ms. Koo Di An,
Louise.

note 2: Ms. Koo Di An, Louise is the wife of Mr. Mon Chung Hung. Ms. Koo is thus
deemed to be interested in 145,158,000 Shares by virtue of her husband’s
interest therein.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. As at 31st
December 2015, no short positions were recorded in the Register of
Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions required to
be kept under section 352 of the SFO.

At no time during the year was the Company, its subsidiaries and its
parent company a party to any arrangement to enable the directors and
chief executives of the Company (including their spouse and children
under 18 years of age) to hold any interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Company.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in the Share
Capital of the Company

Other than the interests of the directors and chief executives of the
Company as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2015, the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO records
interests (as defined in the SFO) in the Company of the following persons.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

BEEWE(E)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in the Share
Capital of the Company (Continued)

Number of Shares

FERRAARQAFRA 2 s (F)

Total interests
as % of the

ROHE relevant

Personal Family Corporate Other Total  issued share

interests interests interests interests interests capital

A RE (L ERS

ERITRA

Ediy 4 EEER 2B

Spector Holdings Limited 145,158,000 - - - 145,158,000 72.96%
(note 1)
(Hizt1)

Fang Zhun Chun F#R/% 9,958,000 - - - 9,958,000 5.00%

note 1: The share capital of the Spector Holdings Limited is owned as to 99.9% by
Mr. Mon Chung Hung and as to the remaining 0.1% by Ms. Koo Di An,
Louise.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. As at 31st
December 2015, no short positions were recorded in the Register of
Interests in Shares and Short Positions of substantial shareholders required
to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, so far as the directors are aware, there were no
person who, as at 31st December 2015, directly or indirectly held or was
beneficially interested in shares representing 5% or more of the issued
share capital of the Company or its subsidiaries.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

Directors’ Interest in Competing Business
None of the Directors has an interest in any business which competes or is
likely to compete with the business of the Group.

Business Review
Business review of the Group is set forth in the Chairman’s Statement on
pages 6 to 9 of this report.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

EXxHmE(E)

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

At no time during the financial year and up to the date of this Directors’
Report, there was or is, any permitted indemnity provision being in force
for the benefit of any of the directors of the Company (whether made
by the Company or otherwise) or an associated company (if made by the
Company).

Auditors

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
Koo Di An, Louise

Chairman

Hong Kong, 15th March 2016
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Perennial International Limited E&S£EER 2

Independent Auditor’s Report
E_UI‘? MR &

To the shareholders of Perennial International Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Perennial
International Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) set out on pages 36 to 111, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31st December 2015,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B B E ()

Auditor’s Responsibility (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at 31st December 2015,
and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 15th March 2016
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Perennial International Limited E&S£EER 2

Consolidated Income Statement

meEER

For the year ended 31st December 2015
BE—F—AF+-A=+—HIFZ

2015 2014
—T-FHE —T—mE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET T
Revenue W zs 4 401,669 455,403
Cost of sales HERAR (327,721) (370,935)
Gross profit EH 73,948 84,468
Other income H bl 5 7,381 7,574
Distribution expenses DiEA X (10,011) (10,408)
Administrative expenses TTE R SZ (53,054) (49,668)
Other operating expenses, net Hh 45 &5 S F %8 (2,089) (5,021)
Operating profit HSingl 6 16,175 26,945
Finance costs U= 7 (965) (1,029)
Profit before taxation BRFR A A 15,210 25,916
Taxation 18 8(a) (3,522) (6,999)
Profit for the year attributable to RAEIRR R ELE
shareholders of the Company REERF 11,688 18,917
Basic and diluted earnings per share (cents) SRR EZR K& 25 (L) 10 5.9 95

The notes on pages 43 to 111 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ 543% 1118 8K A4 4 BTSRRI EBELERD -
financial statements.
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Perennial International Limited 1EHS£E AR A T

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SEeEEEWRER

For the year ended 31st December 2015
BFr —T—haF+_A=+—HIFE

2015 2014
—E-REF —T—MF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT

Profit for the year RNEE A 11,688 18,917
Other comprehensive income/(expenses): Hamiis (Fs)
Items that will not be reclassified HEg g reE5ms \*EKE%EH’J A

subsequently to profit or loss

Revaluation surplus on land and buildings T BT B A% 21,905 16,239
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss Ei&Alc @ EH DA EIERAER

Deferred tax charged to revaluation reserve IR E (L& 2 IRIEFIE (1,711) (2,955)

Exchange difference arising from translation B AR EHRE 2 ik

of financial statements of subsidiaries fERER (14,591) (6,872)

Other comprehensive income for the year, REZHEM 2K

net of tax R IE 5,603 6,412
Total comprehensive income for the year AR EIRERENG

attributable to shareholders REFHEPEW R

of the Company 17,291 25,329

The notes on pages 43 to 111 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ £43%F 111 M3 A4 A BTSRRI EE 5
financial statements.
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Perennial International Limited E&S£EER 2

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B AR R

As at 31st December 2015
REE—AF+-A=+—H

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Land use rights
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Non-current deposits
Deferred tax assets

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and bill receivables
Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments
Taxation recoverable
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity attributable to shareholders
of the Company
Share capital
Other reserves
Retained earnings

Total equity

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
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15

16
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18

19
20
20

2015
—g-5f

HK$°000
TERT

2014

—F—F

HK$'000
FHT

21,122 22,633
313,245 318,606
46,170 27,000
2,226 1,758
4,791 4,521
387,554 374,518
89,919 108,204
92,806 90,019
4,541 5,101
1,339 742
66,560 55,526
255,165 259,592
642,719 634,110
19,896 19,896
214,465 208,862
272,023 264,315
506,384 493,073
35,125 33,986
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Perennial International Limited 1E#8 &£ E AR A 7

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

RAEMBIRRR (&)

As at 31st December 2015
R-ZFE—aF+=—H=4+—H

2015 2014
—E-HF —E—uE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT

Current liabilities nEAE
Trade and bill payables BB SRIEREE 21 24,011 32,910
Other payables and accruals HAth fE A B K EETR S 21 28,381 29,155
Taxation payable JERTHRIE 3,581 2,973
Derivative financial instruments PTESRMIA 23 - 1,207
Bank loan RITER 22 17,917 -
Trust receipt loans EEBEER 22 27,320 40,806
101,210 107,051
Total liabilities waE 136,335 141,037
Total equity and liabilities mEDREAE 642,719 634,110

The consolidated financial statements on pages 36 to 111 were approved  #36BZF 1M B2 GAMBHRENRE—~FE =4
by the Board of Directors on 15th March 2016 and were signed on behalf ~ +HBKEFSHETAEREE -

MON Chung Hung SIU Yuk Shing, Marco
=R 9051
Director Director

s BZE

The notes on pages 43 to 111 are an integral part of these consolidated  43Z 111 H MW AL A B ISR HIREE D o
financial statements.
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Perennial International Limited 1EZ885&E AR A 7

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
meERBER

For the year ended 31st December 2015
BE—F—AF+-A=+—HIFZ

Other
Share reserves Retained Total
capital (note 20) earnings equity
Hitf#iE
;&S (H17#20) REBF R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T TERT FET FET
As at 1st January 2015 RZZE—RF—HA—H 19,896 208,862 264,315 493,073
Comprehensive income FHKE
Profit for the year REEHF - - 11,688 11,688
Other Comprehensive income Hiv 2wkt (Fx)
/(expenses)
Revaluation surplus on land and T RIEF EHAR
buildings - 21,905 - 21,905
Deferred tax charged to revaluation — $0f& B 2 ELER A
reserve - (1,711) = (1,711)
Exchange difference arising from ME AR SHRE 2
translation of financial statements R ERER
of subsidiaries - (14,591) - (14,591)
Total comprehensive income AEEFE2ERE
for the year - 5,603 11,688 17,291
Dividend paid (note 9) S IEE (BEE9) - - (3,980) (3,980)
At 31st December 2015 RZE—HF
+=-—A=+—H 19,896 214,465 272,023 506,384
Representing: HER :
2015 final dividend proposed —E-AFRREZ
RN B 3,980
Others EHih 268,043
Retained earnings as at RZE—HF
31st December 2015 +—A=+—8H
2 REBEF 272,023
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)

AR EHRE)

For the year ended 31st December 2015

HE-F—BF+-A=1—FUFE

As at 1st January 2014

Comprehensive income
Profit for the year
Other Comprehensive income

/(expenses)
Revaluation surplus on land and

buildings

Deferred tax charged to revaluation
reserve

Exchange difference arising from
translation of financial statements
of subsidiaries

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Dividend paid (note 9)

At 31st December 2014

Representing:
2014 final dividend proposed

Others

Retained earnings as at
31st December 2014

Perennial International Limited 1EHS£E AR A T

Other
Share reserves Retained
capital (note 20) earnings
B
&N (Hiaz£20) RE&EF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT T 3T FHT
R=F—RF—A—H ... 198% 202450 253358 475704
EHKE
AN A - - 18,917 18,917
Hivzmks ()
T RIEFC EHAR
- 16,239 - 16,239
MR E AR 2 IELERIA
- (2,955) - (2,955)
M AR HRE 2
HtavfERER
- (6,872) - (6,872)
AFERPEIKEE
- 6,412 18,917 25,329
*fie ez - - ( 7 960) ______ (7 960)
RZZE—F
+=—BA=+—H 19,896 208,862 264,315 493,073
HEER :
ZE-NFRIRE
REARR B 3,980
Ht 260,335
R-ZT—UE
+=—A=t+—8H
ZIRBEF| 264,315

The notes on pages 43 to 111 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Perennial International Limited E&S£EER 2

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEEHERER

For the year ended 31st December 2015
BE—F—AF+-A=+—HIFZ

2015 2014
—B-HEF —E-mEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET BT

Cash flows from operating activities EETHNRERE
Net cash generated from operations EEELENFRe 24(a) 32,865 52,520
Hong Kong profits tax paid, net X EENGERFE (1,326) (6,311)
Overseas tax paid, net XIS FEE (2,245) (3,550)
Bank loans interest paid SHRITERFE (965) (1,029)
Net cash generated from operating activities — &:E R ELFR S 28,329 41,630
Cash flows from investing activities RETENESHRE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment  BEEW% - BiE L& (17,098) (27,924)
Acquisition of land use right BE AR - (10,475)
Increase in deposits paid for additions of ST E - BE KR

property, plant and equipment R ® (468) (545)
Interest received IERFILE, 184 394
Decrease in short-term fixed deposit ARG EATE HATF R - 10,264
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and HEDE - BE N REBFTSHR

equipment 24(b) 119 26
Net cash used in investing activities & ESFTARNFIRE (17,263) (28,260)
Cash flows from financing activities RETHNRERE
Net addition of bank loan FITEIRITER 24(c) 17,917 -
Net (repayments)/additions of trust receipt F(EE) R EliEER

loans 24(c) (13,486) 55
Dividend paid to Company’s shareholders AR BIREZ AR E (3,980) (7,960)

Net cash generated from/(used in) financing ~ REEEBIESL (FA)HEIRS

activities 4 (7905)
Net increase in cash and ReRRESEEY2FEM

cash equivalents 11,517 5,465
Cash and cash equivalents at 1st January R—B—AZHRERREEEY 55,526 50,194
Exchange difference on cash and cash RekBRaEEM2

equivalents EHER (483) (133)
Cash and cash equivalents R+=-—A=+—BzEE&K

at 31st December REEEY 18 66,560 55,526

The notes on pages 43 to 111 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ 543Z 111 B MW AL A FIIE MR LD o
financial statements.
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Perennial International Limited 1EHS£E AR A T

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31st December 2015
R —F—AaF+—A=1+—HIFZE

1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of

these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These

policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,

unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$") unless otherwise stated.

1.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"). They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of land and buildings, investment properties
and derivative financial instruments which are carried at
fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 3.
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Perennial International Limited E&S£EER 2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AP MAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
BFr —T—haF+_A=+—HIFE

1.

44

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

1.1

(a)

(b)

New and amended standards adopted by
the Group

The following amendments to standards have
been adopted by the Group for the first time for
the financial year beginning on or after 1st January
2015:

Amendment to HKAS 19 on contributions from
employees or third parties to defined benefit
plans. The amendment distinguishes between
contributions that are linked to service only in the
period in which they arise and those linked to
service in more than one period. The amendment
allows contributions that are linked to service,
and do not vary with the length of employee
service, to be deducted from the cost of benefits
earned in the period that the service is provided.
Contributions that are linked to service, and vary
according to the length of employee service, must
be spread over the service period using the same
attribution method that is applied to the benefits.

Other standards, amendments and interpretations
which are effective for the financial year beginning
on 1st January 2015 are not material to the
Group.

New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap
622)

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts
and Audit” of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into operation during
the financial year, as a result, there are changes to
presentation and disclosures of certain information
in the consolidated financial statements.

1.
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Perennial International Limited 1EHS£E AR A T

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RAEBmAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
BFr —T—aF+_A=+—HIFE

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 1. FESHEERBEE)
(Continued)
1.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 1.1 EEEE(E)
(c) New standards and interpretations not yet (c) RN ER R R

adopted
A number of new standards and amendments ZIEF ] Bl R ERIE ET AN A
to standards and interpretations are effective for rRER_ZT—hF—H—H
annual periods beginning after 1st January 2015 ZIERE 2 FEER AR - M
and have not been applied in preparing these RRRZEL A P IERERET
consolidated financial statements. None of these KA - EEZEEIIBTYE
is expected to have a significant effect on the AEEZEGREPERREKE
consolidated financial statements of the Group, FE T HEHERI

except the following set out below:

Effective for
accounting period
beginning on or after

FEHRBSBS

ZEHBEXR

Amendment to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements 1st January 2016
EEEIHEAE 1R (BETA) BB IRE TR T %—H—H
Amendment to HKAS 16 Property, plant and equipment 1st January 2016
EEGTERIE165% (BRI A) Mm% - BERRE —E-RF-A—H
Annual Improvements Projects Improvements to HKAS and HKFRS 1st January 2016
(2014 cycle) WEREBGTHEA R BRI ERELER —E—RF—-HA—H

FESEER (ZT—NEREH)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers 1st January 2018

BB TGIREERIZE 155 REEPEK WA —E-N\F—-A—H

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1st January 2018

BB TEIRELERIZFEIR SRTA T N\F—HA—H
The adoption of the above standards, amendments PARIREAREER AN DA BRI ~ %
to standards and interpretations in future periods s AR ZRETEH T2 EE
is not expected to result in substantial changes to REE 7 @xtHEHEEAE
the Group's accounting policies. & o
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Perennial International Limited E&S£EER 2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SRR M o (AR

AN
ZT\I:JE

For the year ended 31st December 2015

Hz—

1.

46

E—AF 1T A=1—HIFFE

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

1.2

1.3

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up
to 31st December.

A subsidiary is an entity over which the Group has control.
The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed
to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred
to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to
conform with the Group’s accounting policies.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investments. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwvill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating segments.

1.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RAEBmAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
BFr —T—aF+_A=+—HIFE

1.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
1.4 Foreign currency translation

0]

(i)

(iii)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group's entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which
is the Company’s functional and the Group's
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into
the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated
at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

(ii) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at an average
exchange rate for the year; and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment
in foreign operations are taken to other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation
is sold, exchange differences that were recorded in
other comprehensive income are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of the gain
or loss on sale.
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1.

48

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

1.5

Investment property

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by
the Group, is classified as investment property. Land held
under operating leases is classified and accounted for as
investment property when the rest of the definition of an
investment property is met. In such cases, the operating
leases concerned are accounted for as if they were finance
leases.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at
fair value. The valuation is reviewed annually by an external
independent valuer on an open market basis. Separate
value is not attributed to land and buildings. Fair value is
based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for
any difference in the nature, location or condition of the
specific asset. If the information is not available, the Group
uses alternative valuation methods such as recent prices
on less active markets or discounted cash flow projections.
The valuation is incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements. Changes in fair values are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of a valuation gain
or loss in “other operating expenses, net”.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the
consolidated income statement during the financial period
in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RAEBmAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
BFr —T—aF+_A=+—HIFE

1.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
1.6 Property, plant and equipment

(i)

(i)

Land and Buildings

Land mainly represents the lands in Hong Kong
under finance lease. Buildings comprise factories
and offices. Land and buildings are shown at fair
value, based on annual valuations by an external
independent valuers, less subsequent depreciation
and impairment. The valuations of Hong Kong
land and buildings and Mainland China factories
are on an open market basis or replacement costs.
Any accumulated depreciation and impairment at
the date of revaluation is eliminated against the
gross carrying amount of the asset and the net
amount is restated to the revalued amount of the
asset.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on
revaluation of land under finance lease and
buildings are credited to land and building
revaluation reserve in equity, except to the extent
that it reverses a revaluation decrease for the same
asset previously recognised in the consolidated
income statement, in which case the increase is
credited to the consolidated income statement
to the extent of the decrease previously charged.
Decreases that offset previous increases of the
same asset are charged against land and building
revaluation reserve directly in equity; all other
decreases are expensed in the consolidated income
statement.

Other property, plant and equipment

Other property, plant and equipment, comprising
leasehold improvements, plant and machinery,
furniture and fixtures, office equipment, motor
vehicles and pleasure boats are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items

Construction in progress is stated at cost which
comprises construction costs, purchase costs and
other related expenses incurred in connection with
the construction of buildings, plant and machinery
for own use, less provision for impairment losses,
if any.
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1.

50

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

1.6 Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)
(iii)  Depreciation

(iv)

Depreciation on lands under finance lease and
buildings is calculated to write off their valuation
less accumulated impairment losses on a straight-
line basis over the unexpired period of the leases
or their estimated useful lives, whichever is shorter.
The principal annual rates used range from 2.5%
10 3.5%.

Other property, plant and equipment except
construction in progress are depreciated at rates
sufficient to write off their costs less accumulated
impairment losses over their estimated useful lives
on a reducing balance basis. The principal annual
rates are as follows:

15% - 20%
15% - 20%
15% - 20%
15% - 20%
15% - 20%
10%

Leasehold improvements
Plant and machinery
Furniture and fixtures
Office equipment

Motor vehicles

Pleasure boats

No depreciation is provided for construction in
progress until they are completed and put into
production ready for their intended use, upon
which they will be transferred to property, plant
and equipment.

Others

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
the replaced part is derecognized. All other repairs
and maintenance are expensed in the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RAEBmAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
BFr —T—aF+_A=+—HIFE

1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
1.6 Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)
(iv)  Others (Continued)
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (note 1.9).

(v) Gains and losses on disposals
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount.
These are included in the consolidated income
statement. Where revalued assets are sold, the
amounts included in land and building revaluation
reserve are transferred to retained earnings.

1.7 Assets under finance leases/operating

leases

(i) Operating leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments
made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.

(i) Finance leases

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised
at the commencement of the leases and at the
lower of the fair value of the leased assets and the
present value of the minimum lease payments.
Each lease payment is allocated between the
liability and finance charges so as to achieve a
constant periodic rate on the outstanding finance
balance. The corresponding rental obligations,
net of finance charges, are included in current
and non-current payables. The interest element of
the finance cost is recognised in the consolidated
income statement over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.
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1.

52

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

1.8

1.9

1.10

Land use rights

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any).
Cost mainly represents consideration paid for the rights
to use the land on which various plants and buildings are
situated for a period of 46-50 years from the date the
respective right was granted. Amortisation of land use
rights is calculated on a straight-line basis over the period
of the land use rights.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are tested
for impairment annually. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. Such impairment loss is recognised in
the consolidated income statement.

Financial assets

(i) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets
at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for the amounts
that are settled or expected to be settled more
than twelve months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-current assets.
The Group's loans and receivables comprise
‘trade and other receivables’ and ‘cash and cash
equivalents’ in the consolidated statement of
financial position (notes 1.12 and 1.13).

1.

TEETHERBE(E)

1.8

1.9

1.10

T b fFE AR

= b {5 A TR AR AR A R AT B 8 I
ZEUREEBBIE(E) - KARERHR
5 A Tt 2 R M 2 TR IR -
ZITHWEEZRBERIET A
46-504F o THi{F A IR T
HEARENIZE S ATE -

FUBEEZRE

KARFH 2 BEFTEFRELE
AR - EBFEMHFHBAIBRDHE
B R TE (B 7T A 0K W3 5t 28 1
HREEEITRERN - BEEBER
EEZREEBHAEAMKOSE Z
FHER - INE S FEABEL ARE
MR HERALEREERNE ZBS
ERE - BEBRERNREBRER

MBEE

(i) 98
REBISHB I EESHAN
TR BARREMAE - 5
BRTHARBEEZ AN -
ERE RN ERRETY
HAENHE -

B R EWIE BB EE KA
MENFBRLSEEERTS
FHRENFETETHEE © 1t
LHEREERBEEAN - A
TEHAHE A SRS HA R B AT B 1B
+oEAGLEmEEE - BlokE
BIERBEE - AEEHER
K EWGRIE AR A MISARR &R
[E 5 kH g siE ] m[ ]
e RBESFED I EK (KT
1.12%1.13) °

Annual Report 2015 =& — R FF R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RAEBmAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
BFr —T—aF+_A=+—HIFE

1.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
1.10 Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date - the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair
value plus transaction costs. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the investments have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and
in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy
of the company or the counterparty. At the end
of each reporting period, there are no material
financial assets and liabilities that are offset in the
consolidated statement of financial position or
subject to offsetting, under enforceable master
netting arrangements and similar agreements.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.
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1.

54

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
1.10 Financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Evidence of impairment may include indications
that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

The amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined
under the contract. As a practical expedient, the
Group may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable market
price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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1.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

1.1

1.12

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs are assigned to individual items on
the first-in, first-out basis and are arrived at as follows:

(i) Raw materials purchased for use in the
manufacturing process — invoiced price and
shipping cost.

(ii) Work in progress and finished manufactured
goods — costs of direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads.

(iii) Finished goods purchased for resale — invoiced

price and shipping cost.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less applicable variable selling
expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. A provision for impairment of receivables
is established when there is objective evidence that
the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of receivable. The amount
of the provision is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The
amount of the provision is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previous written off are credited in the consolidated
income statement.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

1.13

1.14

1.15

1.16

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and deposits held at
call with banks with original maturities of three months or
less.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade and other payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less
(or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer).
If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the end of the
reporting period.

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the consolidated
income statement in the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RAEBmAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
BFr —T—aF+_A=+—HIFE

1.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
1.17 Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payment is recognised
as a liability and an expense when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of services rendered by employees and a reliable
estimate of the obligation can be made. Liabilities
for bonus plan are expected to be settled within
twelve months and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when they are settled.

Retirement benefit costs

For Hong Kong employees, Group contributes to
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF") scheme in
accordance with Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. Contributions to
the MPF scheme by the Group and employees
are calculated as a percentage of employees’
remuneration received. The Group’s contributions
to MPF scheme are expensed as incurred. The
assets of the MPF scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund.

For employees in Mainland China, the Group
contributes to a defined contribution retirement
scheme managed by the local municipal
government in Mainland China. The Group's
contributions to the retirement scheme are
expensed as incurred while the local municipal
government in Mainland China undertakes to
assume that the retirement benefit obligations of
the qualified employees in Mainland China.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AP MAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
BFr —T—haF+_A=+—HIFE

1.

58

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

1.18 Current and deferred income tax
The tax expenses for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period in
the countries where the Company and its
subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of reporting
period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RAEBmAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
BFr —T—aF+_A=+—HIFE

1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

1.18 Current and deferred income tax

(Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)
Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable entity
or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

1.19 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the
amount can be made. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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For the year ended 31st December 2015
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1.

60

E—AF 1T A=1—HIFFE

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

1.20 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods, interest
income and operating lease rental income in the ordinary
course of the Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of
value-added tax, returns, rebates and discount, and after
eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities as described below. The Group bases its estimates
on historical results, taking into consideration the type of
customers, the type of transactions and the specifics of
each arrangement. Revenue is recognised as follows:

(i) Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised on
the transfer of risks and rewards of ownership,
which generally coincides with the time when the
goods are delivered to customers and title has
passed.

(ii) Interest income is recognised on a time proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

(iii) Operating lease rental income is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RAEBmAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
BFr —T—aF+_A=+—HIFE

FESHBRBEGE)
1.21 JRERE

1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 1.
(Continued)
1.21 Dividend distribution

Final dividend proposed to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the financial statements
in the period in which the dividend is approved by the
Company's shareholders.

A2 AR 90 IR B0 BB 7 i B AR
D EBCR A R HAE AR B TS R A
JImBIE

1.22 Derivative financial instruments 1.22 T4 T H
The Group's derivative financial instruments are AEBTASRIESEAKRARE
categorised as financial liabilities at fair value through BREERNESHEE -
profit or loss.
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date PTHETIEREFITSHNEANAR
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently BEER  HEBEEAREEEN
re-measured at their fair value. Changes in the fair value of B BFMETARNHEEREHE
these derivative instruments that do not qualify for hedge o BEARBEESERELSIE
accounting are recognised immediately in the consolidated R ER ©
income statement.

1.23 Government grants and subsidies 1.23 BB &SR

Government grants and subsidies are financial assistance
by local municipal government in Mainland China in the
form of transfer of resources to an enterprise to encourage
business development in the local municipality and are
recognised at their fair value where there are reasonable
assurance that the grants and subsidies will be received
and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.
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AP MAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
BFr —T—haF+_A=+—HIFE

2.  Financial Risk Management
2.1 Financial risk factors
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group's overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

Management regularly manages the financial risks of the
Group.

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk
arising from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to Renminbi (“RMB"). Foreign
exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities
and net investments in foreign operations. In
addition, the conversion of RMB is subject to
the rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by Mainland China monetary
authority.

The Group uses forward contracts to manage
exposures arising from the fluctuation of RMB.
Details are disclosed in note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Should HK$ strengthened/weakened by 5% (2014:
5%) during the year ended 31st December 2015
against the RMB, with all other variables held
constant, the impact of the profit after taxation
and the equity for the year would have been
approximately HK$84,000 (2014: HK$389,000)
lower/higher, mainly as a result of foreign
exchange losses/gains.

Certain of the assets of the Group are
denominated in United States Dollar (*USD")
but the foreign exchange risk is considered not
significant as HK$ exchange rate is pegged to
USD.

The foreign exchange risk on financial assets and

liabilities denominated in currencies other than
RMB and USD are insignificant to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RAEBmAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
BFr —T—aF+_A=+—HIFE

2. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
2.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Price risk

The Group exposes to fluctuations in the market
price of major raw materials such as copper rods
and chemicals to make plastic resins.

The Group is able to pass certain realised price
gains and losses on raw materials to certain
customers through price adjustments, which can
mitigate the price risk. The Group has not used
any derivative instruments to hedge such economic
exposures.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from bank
borrowings. Borrowings at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
Borrowings at fixed rates expose the Group to
fair value interest rate risk. Details of the Group's
borrowings have been disclosed in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group has not used any hedging arrangement
to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

The sensitivity analysis presents the effects on
the Group's profit after taxation for the year as a
result of changes in interest expense on floating
rate borrowings. The sensitivity to interest rate
used is based on market forecasts available at
the reporting date and under the economic
environments in which the Group operates, with
other variables held constant.

Based on the analysis performed, the impact
on the profit after taxation of a 100 basis-
point increase/decrease in interest rate would
be a decrease/increase of HK$378,000 and
HK$341,000 for the years ended 31st December
2015 and 2014, respectively.
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AP MAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
BFr —T—haF+_A=+—HIFE

2. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
2.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv)

64

Credit risk

The Group’s bank balances are deposited with
financial institutions with reliable and acceptable
rating quality. Management regularly assesses
the credit risk of these financial institutions by
reviewing their published financial information and
credit rating.

The Group's exposure to credit risk arises from
default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amount of each
financial asset, including cash at bank, trade and
other receivables as disclosed in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The Group has concentration of credit risk.
Sales made to the top 5 customers amounted
to approximately HK$252,802,000 (2014:
HK$282,798,000), representing 63% (2014: 62%)
of total revenue for the year. The total accounts
receivable balance of these top 5 customers as at
31st December 2015 was HK$59,787,000 (2014:
HK$55,657,000).

The Group has policies in place to ensure sales
are made to customers with an appropriate credit
terms and the Group performs periodic credit
check with reference to credit rating performed by
external agents, and makes periodic assessment
of the customers’ payment history to assess the
recoverability of trade receivables of its customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RAEBmAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
BFr —T—aF+_A=+—HIFE

2. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
2.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(v)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and making available
an adequate amount of committed credit facilities
with staggered maturities to reduce refinancing
risk in any year and to fund working capital, debt
servicing, dividend payments, new investments
and close out market positions if required. The
Group maintains significant flexibility to respond
to opportunities and events by ensuring that
committed credit lines available. As at 31st
December 2015, the Group had available trade
and loan finance facilities of HK$238,917,000 of
which HK$48,453,000 were utilised.

The table below analyses the Group'’s financial
liabilities and net-settled derivative financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the end of the reporting
date to the contractual maturity date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12
months equal their carrying balances as the impact
of discounting is not significant.

Perennial International Limited 1EHS£E AR A T

M EREE (&)

MR EE (&)

(v)

MENE SRS
BEORBECRBREE 2
BREREMES BEREN
BABEERHARESFEAT
EZHBRERR  UARIES
DREHEEES BAME -
IREEAR B - {EL IR E RN
ZRHME - AEEBRE S
EERHANDASEREE - I
TG IR RS R
EoHEZE-_ZTZ—AHF+_A
=t+—H AEEEUHHE
S RIEERE 5238,917,000
7T - H A E B)F48,453,000
I o

TEROMAEENERBER
WHRBEEFENITTESRE
& - RRBEN R EER - R
BhBREHERBEAOEH
BERI BT O - BX
NWEMNZERADIEREER
REME - BREENTEN
R BULFE 1218 A AR A5
FRAESENEREE

On demand
or within
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15X
HK$°000
TEx

At 31st December 2015 R-E—HF+-A=+—H

Trust receipt loans and interest payables IR E R L R T8 27,411
Bank loan and interest payables RITER R IERFE 18,480

2S5  ERERKEMERNTE
MEETRY 45,187

Trade, bill and other payables
and accruals

At 31st December 2014 R-—E=—mME+=-A=+—H

Trust receipt loans and interest payables ErRBEER R ERFE 40,925
Trade, bill and other payables #5  EEREMENRE
and accruals R FERT IS 52,539
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2. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

2.1

2.2

66

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(v) Liquidity risk (Continued)
The table below analyses the Group’s derivative
financial instruments which will be settled on
a gross basis into relevant maturity grouping
based on the remaining period at the end of
the reporting date to the contractual maturity
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows.

At 31st December 2015
Forward foreign exchange contracts

At 31st December 2014
Forward foreign exchange contracts

Capital risk management

The primary objective of the Group's capital management
is to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, maintain a strong credit rating and a healthy
capital ratio to support the business and to enhance
shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and business strategies. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payments to shareholder, issue new shares or raise and
repay debts. The Group’s capital management objectives,
policies or processes were unchanged during the years
ended 31st December 2015 and 2014.

2. HIBERERE(E)

2.1

2.2

Bk E = (&)

(v) RBESRMRE)
TEROMAEENHE 0T
EERT ARERNALEE
HANEREREHERAE
BRZNH B RORERHRE - R
MBS ERALEREER

A=
WEME °

Within 1 year
—&R

HK$°000
TR

R-ZE-HEF+=-RA=+—H
IR ERSNES A

R-ZE-—MFE+=-A=+—H
IR ERSNES A

1,207
EERREE
AEEESEENTERE  RER

AEEFELE  ERRENEEN
MIBROE SR - USFHER
BERIBEFRREE -

NEBREELEM TS ISR
BREREMALESLEME - AEB 7
FELETRENRES - /78K - 28
BEXEEES AEENESEIER
B HBEMMEFR-_Z—RAFE=F
—NEE+-—A=+—HItYENE -

Annual Report 2015 =& — R FF R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RAEBmAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
BFr —T—aF+_A=+—HIFE

2. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
2.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided
by total capital. Total borrowings include non-current
borrowings and current borrowings (note 22). Total capital
includes total borrowings and total equity as shown on
the consolidated statement of financial position.

The gearing ratios at 31st December 2015 and 2014 were
as follows:
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2. UIBEREREGE)

2.2

EERREE(R)
AEEMNBREEELXERAEER
Ao P RIRRBEERIABER -
REEBEIFRDLRBER (T
22) - REXBIEREE MERARER
TR A FFBARIEK

HE_Z—RAFE_ZT—NF+_A
—t+—HIEFEBEEEELRNAT :

2015 2014

—ZE-HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
Total borrowings nEsE 45,237 40,806
Total equity g G 506,384 493,073
Total capital HBER 551,621 533,879
Gearing ratio BEEELE 8% 8%

2.3 Fair value estimation 23 AREfME

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
and liabilities including cash and cash equivalents, trade
and other receivables, trade and other payables, and
short-term borrowings approximate to their fair values
due to their short-term maturities. The fair value of
financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated
by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the
current market interest rate that is available to the Group
for similar financial instruments.
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AP MAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
Bz —FE—nF 1T _H=F—HIFE

2. Financial Risk Management (Continued) 2. HBERER(E)
2.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 23 AREMFTE

The following table presents the Group's liabilities that TRV -_ZE—RAFR T —NF

are measured at fair value and classified by level of the T AZ+—BAEBEEAREE

following fair value measurement hierarchy at 31st MEERRAREFENERERE

December 2015 and 2014: ok -

1. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for 1. MAEERMSP AR EESK
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1). BEZ(CREAB)RE(FE—

;) °

2. Inputs other than quoted prices included within 2. BRE RS —REREN - &8
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, AZBIEHEE (RER) S EE
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, (BERITE)ERTERMS
derived from prices) (Level 2). IR 2 ERM (B -

3. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based 3. BENBBEZEHEILIFERT
on observable market data (that is, unobservable BT B EUE (FEE R EUR)
inputs) (Level 3). (B=8) -

See note 15 for disclosures of the investment properties BERBERALBITEZREME IR

that are measured at fair value and note 14 for disclosures % B2EWEIs MEREARE

of the Property, plant and equipment that are measured at AEZME  BMEMSHBZHE B

fair value. 28R4 -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—#& et =8 st
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FExT FTET FHET FET
2015 —E-hfF
Liabilities I=NEd
Derivative financial HEeBRIA
instruments (note 23) (fg3E23) = = - -
2014 —E-mF
Liabilities BfE
Derivative financial TSI A
instruments (note 23) (B3E23) - 1,207 - 1,207

There was no transfer between level 1, 2 and 3 during the RERNFE— - ZR=F MW EEE o

year.
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RAEBmAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
BFr —T—aF+_A=+—HIFE

2.

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

2.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the end of
reporting date. The quoted market price used for financial
assets and liabilities held by the Group is the current bid
price. These instruments are included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available and
rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in level
3.

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below.

3.1 Taxation

The Group is subject to taxation in several jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for taxation. Sufficient provisions are set aside
to meet all tax liabilities. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in
the period in which such determination is made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AP MAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
BFr —T—haF+_A=+—HIFE

3.

/0

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
(Continued)

3.2

3.3

3.4

Estimated fair value of properties

The fair values of investment properties, land and
buildings are determined at the end of each reporting
period by an independent professional valuer. The fair
value of investment properties is determined on an open
market value basis by reference to comparable market
transactions and where appropriate on the basis of
capitalisation of the net rental income/net income after
allowing for outgoings and in appropriate cases provisions
for reversionary income potential. The fair values of land
and buildings are determined on an open market value or
depreciated replacement cost basis. These methodologies
are based upon estimates of future results and a set of
assumptions as to income and expenses of the property
and future economic conditions.

Impairment of trade receivables
Management determines the provision for impairment
of trade and other receivables. This estimate is based on
the credit history of its customers and the current market
condition. Management reassess the provision at reporting
date.

Significant judgement is exercised on the assessment of
the collectability of trade receivables from each customer.
In making its judgement, management considers a wide
range of factors such as results of follow-up procedures
performed by sales personnel, customer payment trends
including subsequent payments and customers’ financial
positions. If the financial conditions of the customers were
to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to
make payments, additional allowances may be required.

Provision for inventories

Significant judgement is exercised in the assessment of
the net realisable value of its inventory. In making its
judgement, management considers a wide range of factors
such as the age of the inventory items and the assessment
of the results of the subsequent sales performance of the
items.

3.

B S Rt B I Il ()

3.2

3.3

3.4

HETEARE

REME  LHEBFHAAERS
EREMERA BB LEXAEER
RE - REMENRABE2EALER
ISR B AR T 5 1% N8 & 1R
BERAEXHMEENEERARE
(EEEEMH)EXMEFHES KA
FRA - T RETFHAABRARH
MHEERIFEREERAT AR
E o A ETDETIRBARRAERM G
M—ZFNER P ER AT KA
KEBEBERMIELERR ©

FEIR B 5 BR T 2 iRl fEL 1R

B I 8 R 5 R R L A B M
HOBZ MBI « AT DEREE
FrBAEHRERARTR - B2
RS A REHEERE -

RAFAESEEP ZRBE 2 IR EIEE
B TTEEEAHET o RMEH HEE -
EREEBEZAR(PINHEASRT
HITZRERFER TPNREBE
(BREERNR)RFPZMBARR)
WEREEEP ZHBRRBL - &
BRSERN T ZE I RE - BT e
AEHERINEE

FERE
RHEFEZ 2R FEREELE
RHE - IELHIER - EEEZE
BzRAZ  wiFEIEE 2R METE
BREHEEE 2T -

Annual Report 2015 =& — R FF R



Perennial International Limited 1E#8 &£ E AR A 7

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RAEBmAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
BFr —T—aF+_A=+—HIFE

3.  Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements 3. RIS {HE R HE (&)
(Continued)

3.5 Estimated useful lives of property, plant 3.5 Y% BERREZMEFH

and equipment ERAFH

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful AEEEEEETYE  BENMERE
lives and related depreciation charges for its property, plant ZIhET R E A F AT ERY -
and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical UEET AR BB ALIEE k15
experience of the actual useful lives of the property, plant ZYE - BENREZERAFERF
and equipment of similar nature and functions. It could A2 FE 2 485 - A Ae R R R ifn 8
change significantly as a result of technical innovations. EEREE  c EEEBENITER
Management will increase the depreciation charge where oo HEERFEER Z B AT 2 F
useful lives are less than previously estimated lives, or it B siiiisE s e ZEESHE 2
will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non- BEFSIERIEEE -

strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

4. Revenue and Segment Information 4., WHERIHER
The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and FEEIRREENEEERNERERE
trading of electric cable and wire products. Revenue recognised 1% o FNHERZWERAT -

during the year is as follows:

2015 2014

—E-—FF —F—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

TER T

Sale of goods HE 401,669 455,403
The Chief Executive Officer (the chief operation decision maker) TREH(EEEERE) DHERNERRES
has reviewed the Group's internal reporting and determines that MENEECERENEBRERFES MREERP
there are five reportable segments, based on location of customers FREME RESE - BEEE - REKRE - &
under electric cable and wire products business, including Hong MBS ~ M REUN - 8D 520k

Kong, Mainland China, Other Asian countries, America and TP PR H BB R B 2 A Rl E 5 8F

Europe. These segments are managed separately as each segment
is subject to risks and returns that are different from others.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AP MAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
Bz —FE—nF 1T _H=F—HIFE

4. Revenue and Segment Information

(Continued)

The segment information for the reportable segments for 2015
and 2014 are as follows:

Hong Kong e
Mainland China B KR
Other Asian Countries  EfhTEHER
America e

Europe BN
Reportable segment  RE/
Unallocated costs, APEER -

net of income MERBA

Operating profit Ryl

4., WakoHER(E)
—E-RFERZZE-HFERENHNHEE
BT
Revenue
(external Segment segment Capital
sales) results assets expenditure Depreciation Amortisation
Brgs
(SpEBEEE) PEEE HAIWEE EEAMEX e ey
2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015
“E-Rf ZCZE-Rnf ZCZZ-1f ZCZZ-1f CZZT-EI§ CZZ-If
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT TR TR THET
136,070 5,539 206,498 883 4,746 -
54,710 4,260 295,058 16,215 9,740 600
24,790 692 13,621 - - -
184,889 6,977 76,292 - - -
1,210 35 289 - - -
401,669 17,503 591,758 17,098 14,486 600
(1,328)
16,175

Hong Kong )
Mainland China B A RE
Other Asian Countries  HAZsMEIR
America e

Europe BUM

Reportable segment &5

Unallocated costs, ANEER
net of income BRI
Operating profit R

Revenue Total
(external Segment segment Capital
results assets  expenditure  Depreciation  Amortisation
SBE  BAMRxX e g
2014 2014 201
i2fe3 F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT FET TR BT THT
186,911 9,903 237,143 1,733 4,753 -
58,577 7,477 301,727 36,666 9,711 411
20,530 907 15,708 - - -
188,263 9,857 47,759 - - -
1,122 49 252 - - -
455,403 28,193 602,589 38,399 14,464 411
(1,248)
26,945

/12
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RAEBmAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
BFr —T—aF+_A=+—HIFE

4. Revenue and Segment Information 4,
(Continued)
A reconciliation of total segment assets to the Group's total assets.

Total segment assets BOHEE
Investment properties wEE
Deferred tax assets BETIHEE
Total assets BEE

HK$'000

TR
591,758 602,589
46,170 27,000
4,791 4,521
642,719 634,110

Unallocated costs, net of income mainly represent corporate
expenses and income from investment properties.

Revenue of approximately HK$201,094,000 (2014:
HK$252,479,000) are derived from three (2014: four) major
customers contributing 10% or more of the total revenue. These
revenues are attributable to the America segment (2014: America
and Hong Kong segments).

AOBEER @ HRBATERARHERE
CUE L ONG

U 2% 4 201,094,000 7 T ( — & — [0 F
252,479,000/ ) =2k B = (== — U4 :
ME)TEEFPERAKZF10%IA L - %5
WA EMNDE(—E—TE : ENREE

HE) -

2015 2014
—E-RfF —Z—OF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET BT
Customer A ZEA 69,535 64,621
Customer B =ZF5B 69,025 71,135
Customer C BFEC 62,534 67,768
Customer D 25D - 48,955
201,094 252,479
5.  Other Income 5. Hblks

2015 2014
—E—AHfF —Z—OF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Scrap sales FERMEE 4,176 5,913
Interest income R B WA 184 394
Rental income from investment properties 3R B3R & W% 2 U 488 754
Other income from customers EmERIA 1,578 -

Compensation, storage and delivery income EF#E - BFE R
from customers EIRUA 955 -
Government subsidy BT R - 513
7,381 7,574

Annual Report 2015 =& — R FF R 73



Perennial International Limited 1EZ885&E AR A 7
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AP MAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
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6. Operating Profit 6. fRERA
Operating profit is stated after charging/(crediting) the following: CEHEFBINRGIA) THIEHE -

2014
—ZF—F
HK$'000
FHBT

HK$°000
FHET

Amortisation and depreciation: B MITE -

Amortisation of land use rights b R £ 600 411

Depreciation of owned property, BEVE  BEREETE

plant and equipment 14,486 14,464

Auditor’s remuneration ZEENN S
— Audit services —FEiTIEE 1,230 1,190
— Non-audit services —JEETIEE 947 801
Cost of raw materials consumed JRAMEHE AR AR 213,740 265,528
Net exchange (gains)/losses HNEESF (YR 2s), 185k (556) 1,637
Operating lease rentals in respect of T RIEFZEEEERS

land and buildings 452 410
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BEREEEBE

plant and equipment 97 16
Rental income, net of direct expenses from & WA - HBELHES KA Z

property that generated rental income MERM 7 BEKERT (434) (679)
Gain on revaluation of investment property & & ¥ EFTES (600) -
(Reversal of revaluation deficit)/ (BmEGIEL) BT EMKEBL

revaluation deficit of building (506) 506
Reversal of provision for returns BEIRE R RIREHE

and doubtful debts (164) (224)
Unrealised loss on derivative financial PTHESMIAFRERIBA

instruments = 1,207
Provision for slow-moving inventories ERTFERE 220 2,082
Staff costs (including directors’ BIRA(RIEEEMSE) (FizE11)

emoluments) (note 11) 107,526 110,739

7.  Finance Costs 7. WMKEA
2015 2014
—Z-RF —Z—OF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FiT
Interest expenses on bank borrowings IRITENF B 965 1,029
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For the year ended 31st December 2015
BFr —T—aF+_A=+—HIFE

8. Taxation 8. ®iE
(a) Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate (a) BEEBEMER BB AREE 2 (Gt ER
of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable Baf16.5%(—ZF—MN4F : 16.5%)
profit for the year. Taxation on overseas profits has been ZEEE o BINEFTIBERAREER
calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year B B A B A F B 2 (k5 E SRR Vi R
at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which EEBFERR ZIRITRETE -

the Group operates.

The amount of taxation charged/(credited) to the Her/ Gt iREERER 2 FIEE
consolidated income statement represents:

2015 2014
—E-HF —T—mF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Hong Kong profits tax EBNEB 770 2,053
Overseas taxation NI 3,616 4,446
Over provision in prior year FRITBRER S (22) (30)
Deferred tax relating to the R ERENEERER 2
origination and reversal of IRAERIE (P FE8(D))
temporary differences (note 8(b)) (842) 530
3,522 6,999
The taxation on the Group's profit before taxation differs ANEE A AR AR F 2 T I8 B R 2
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the KABAENEGHEME 2 RmBiEE
profits tax rate of Hong Kong as follows: ZEEWT
2015 2014
—E—HF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Profit before taxation R F5 AT A 15,210 25,916
Calculated at a taxation rate of %% 16.5%
16.5% (2014: 16.5%) (ZZ—/F : 16.5%)
STEZHRIEA 2,510 4,276
Effect of different taxation rate HMBERTER R 2 2
in other countries 1,422 2,547
Income not subject to taxation BERTLZ WA (1,074) (663)
Expenses not deductible for AAHHE 2 2
taxation purposes 730 1,061
Over provision in prior year FRITBRER S (22) (30)
Others Hith (44) (192)
Taxation charge TRk 3,522 6,999
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8. Taxation (Continued) 8. HiE(HE)
(b) The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax (b) BEERIBEEREEFRBE G T
liabilities is as follows: ™
2015
—E-HF —T—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F# T
Deferred tax assets RIEF IR & B
— Deferred tax assets to be recovered ~ — #BiE-+— & AZULEIHY
after more than 12 months BIETRIREE (4,791) (4,521)
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEAR
— Deferred tax liabilities to be settled ~ — #Bi@&+ — (& A2 X HY
after more than 12 months FEERIBEE 35,125 33,986
Deferred tax liabilities, net RERIEG E - JF58 30,334 29,465
The movement on the net deferred tax liabilities account is FERIABERE FENEeHuT -
as follows:

2015 2014
—E-HF —T—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FA&T
At 1st January n—H—H 29,465 25,980
Deferred tax (credited)/charged to the  (5FA), /HBRiRG I8 R 2
consolidated income statement IRIERIE (I 5E8(a))
(note 8(a)) (842) 530
Deferred tax charged to Mk EEEEZELERE
revaluation reserve 1,711 2,955
At 31st December W+—A=+—8H 30,334 29,465
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8. Taxation (Continued)

(Continued)

The movements on the deferred tax liabilities and assets,
without taking into consideration the offsetting of
balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

(b)

Perennial International Limited 1E#8 &£ E AR A 7

8. HIE(HE)

(b)

(&)
FEREEBER TR E EREANEHE
B®E - BEHARBEREEZEBIT
ERETRIREE

Deferred tax liabilities EEHBEEE
Tax depreciation Revaluation surplus Provisions and others Total
BERE BB BERHM aE
2015 2014 2015 2015 2014 2015
“E-nf mE Z-hf —E-1f nE ZE-RF —Z-J
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'00! HK$'000 HK$'000
THL TAL THEL AL TEx 7T TER AT
At 1st January ®—A—H 2,390 2,360 35,517 32,562 1,378 1,014 39,285 35,936
(Credited)/charged to ~ B&FABHERT
the consolidated GPNVE
income statement (221) 30 - 179 364 (42) 394
Deferred tax charged o IR EffEZ
revaluation reserve BRI - - 1,711 2,955 - - 1,711 2,955
At 31st December R+-A=1+—H 2,169 2,390 37,228 35,517 1,557 1,378 40,954 39,285
Deferred tax assets EEBIEEE
Tax depreciation Provisions and others Tax losses Total
BERE BEREM AEMNEE “m
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
“E-1E nE ZB-ff -—T-NF ZB-HF -—TNF ZE-Hf “TIF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL AT THAL AT TER TAT TER THBT
At 1st January m—RA—H 3,061 2,928 6,131 6,439 628 589 9,820 9,956
Credited/(charged) to ~ B&FARBHRERD
the consolidated A/ (H18)
income statement 308 133 312 (308) 180 39 800 (136)
At 31st December R+-A=1+—H 3,369 3,061 6,443 6,131 808 628 10,620 9,820
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8. Taxation (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-
forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related
tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable.
The Group did not recognise deferred tax assets of
HK$604,000 (2014: HK$647,000) in respect of losses
amounting to HK$3,662,000 (2014: HK$3,919,000) that
can be carried forward against future taxable income. The

tax losses have no expiry date.

Deferred tax liabilities of HK$2,270,000 (2014:
HK$2,874,000) have not been recognised for the
withholding tax and other taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries. Such
amounts are permanently reinvested. Unremitted earnings
totalled HK$35,047,000 at 31st December 2015 (2014:

HK$39,793,000).

0. Dividend

The dividends paid in 2015 and 2014 were HK$3,980,000
(HK$0.02 per share) and HK$7,960,000 (HK$0.04 per share)
respectively. A dividend in respect of the year ended 31st
December 2015 of HK$0.02 per share, amounting to a total
dividend of HK$3,980,000, is to be proposed at the annual
general meeting on 9th May 2016. These consolidated financial

statements do not reflect this dividend payable.

8.

HiIE (&)
(b) (%)
HAENEBERRARBEERIBEER
HFE - RIRBEBIRBLEE N RKIE
%%ﬁéiﬁﬁu B IR /98 B B 7% I 2 T AR
R o ANER B I M T] A DA SR 2R
JERBIU Z B TR B 15 3,662,000/ 7T
—Z—P4 : 3,919,000/5 7T ) FER
JEIE R TH & E604,000/8 7L ( —Z—
& 1 647,00087T) © BiIEEEI
g

EE AR E T B A R R R
BFBT TR TBIR TS TR E A0 T
T R IE FE R TH & 15 2,270,0005%8 7T
(ZZ—PU4 : 2,874,00087T) ° b5
KERBMNEBERPHIEE - K=
T—RAFt+-_A=+—BHRERR
F 4 $£35,047,00008 70 ( — T — P 4F ¢
39,793,000/ 7T) o

RE
E-E-—AFR-T-NFRAZARES
z%a,%o,ooo%ru(lﬁxz,%fm ) %.7,960,0007%
T(ERAEN) - BRZE—RERANLALR
TOREBFAS £ BE - AF+=
A= + B I FERIRERARE BER2E
il » 485t /43,980,00078 7T © ALRA MIERE
ﬂi&ﬂ%&tlﬁ%ﬁﬂxé o

2015 2014
—E-hF

HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FAT

Interim, paid, of HK$Nil FREBREB I BIRERERE
(2014: HK$0.02) per ordinary share (ZZ—meF - 2780) = 3,980

Final, proposed, of HK$0.02 BAREmAR2BIL 2 BORE R EARE

(2014: HK$0.02) per ordinary share (Z=—meF : 258l) 3,980 3,980
3,980 7,960

/8
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For the year ended 31st December 2015
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10. Earnings Per Share 10.

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the Group's
profit for the year of HK$11,688,000 (2014: HK$18,917,000)
divided by the weighted average number of 198,958,000 (2014:
198,958,000) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

In both 2015 and 2014, diluted earnings per share is the same as
basic earnings per share due to the absence of dilutive potential
ordinary shares during the reporting period.

11. Staff Costs (Including Directors’ Emoluments) 11.

BREF

BRERBFDRBEFAZALEBAFE &
#111,688,000% 7T (—Z —PU4 : 18,917,000
B RIEFANBEITLER 2 NEFHE
198,958,000% (== —PU4F : 198,958,000 )

RoB-—REER-TWEE - BAREH
AR B EAR - SRR
HEAGRAFUER -

ETRA(BRESHE)

2015 2014

—E—FF —E—E

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAET

Wages, salaries and fringe benefits T& - SR EENERL 100,491 103,915

Social security costs e IRER A 6,417 6,036
Pension costs — contribution to RIREK A — g fE st &l

MPF scheme YEH 2 K 511 499

Others Hih 107 289

107,526 110,739
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AP MAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
Bz —FE—nF 1T _H=F—HIFE

12. Benefits and Interests of Directors and Key 12. EERFEEBAEBZEIRES
Management
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) E=FHmM
The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31st BHE_T—RAF+_-_A=+—HIF
December 2015 is set out below: B BRESHFMOT
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of person’s BENHEARSEMRBLEEEERZA
services as a director, whether of the Company or its TrMesk EEKMSmT ¢

subsidiary undertaking:

Discretionary Other
Name of directors Fees Salary bonuses benefits (ii) Total
EEpE e e MRS  HMER (i) b
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
THERT THET FHExT FHET FHET
MON Chung Hung (iii) - 4,560 348 136 5,044
F AR (il
KOO Di An, Louise - 1,320 139 134 1,593
=il
SIU Yuk Shing, Marco - 654 55 243 952
FRIERK
MON Wai Ki, Vicky - 346 6 17 369
RIEH
MON Tiffany - 482 67 18 567
wENR
LAU Chun Kay (i) 180 - - - 180
SIHREL (i)
LEE Chung Nai, Jones (i) 84 - - - 84
FRE ()
MA Chun Hon, Richard (i) 76 - - - 76
FHEZ ()
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RAEBmAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
BFr —T—aF+_A=+—HIFE

12. Benefits and Interests of Directors and Key 12. ESRFEEBABZEMNRER
Management (Continued) (%)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EE=FHFM(E)
The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31st HE-_Z—NE+-_A=+—HLHF
December 2014 is set out below: B BRESHFMNT
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of person’s BENHAARISEMBEEESE A
services as a director, whether of the Company or its T2 e AR E AT

subsidiary undertaking:

Discretionary Other
Name of directors Fees Salary bonuses benefits (ii) Total
EEME e e WIS HAbAa (i) ks
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHT FHT FiBT FBT
MON Chung Hung (iii) - 4,560 815 128 5,503
Fa IR i)
KOO Di An, Louise - 1,320 326 116 1,762
B
SIU Yuk Shing, Marco - 642 211 361 1,214
B
MON Wai Ki, Vicky - 340 25 16 381
HIER
MON Tiffany - 492 212 17 721
&R
LAU Chun Kay (i) 180 - - - 180
23REL ()
LEE Chung Nai, Jones (i) 84 - - - 84
FRE (i)
MA Chun Hon, Richard (i) 83 - - - 83
BIHEE ()
(i) Independent non-executive directors (i) B IERITES
(ii) Other benefits include commission, insurance (ii) HitbgfeEEs@e  RR
premium and MPF scheme contribution. M REES 2K o
(iif) Chief Executive Officer (iif) ITHBUAREL
(b) Directors’ retirement benefits (b) EZEHENKER
None of the directors received or will receive any FA - BREESEINHEBRKE
retirement benefits during the year (2014 Nil) F(ZE—F - &) o
(c) Directors’ termination benefits () EEWRLETR
None of the directors received or will receive any FR - BEEFEINIERRILE
termination benefits during the year (2014: Nil). ERBEM(ZZT—UF : &) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AP MAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
Bz —FE—nF 1T _H=F—HIFE

12. Benefits and Interests of Directors and Key 12.

Management (Continued)

(d) Consideration provided to third parties
for making available directors’ services
During the year ended 31st December 2015, the Group
did not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2014: Nil).

(e) Information about loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors
During the year ended 31st December 2015, there is no
loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in
favour of the directors, or controlled body corporates and
connected entities of such directors (2014: Nil).

(f) Directors’ material interests in

transactions, arrangements or contracts
No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Company’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year (2014:
Nil).

82

EERFIEEEASZRA R ER

(&)

(d)

(e)

(f)

MEMHEEREMEAE=S
RUNEE
HE—T—RAF+-A=+—HZ#F
B AEBWSERERESRSEM
SNE=ZFHEHE(ZT—NF - 8) o

FEE XZSERLHN
EABRRZESHNEEE
RRENER - BERMHE
1R 7 K&
BIE—2—AF+-A=+—A2%F
EOBENEE B2 T0HEE
REEERATMAZER  EERK
HEMR B (B —F : ) -

EEEXRS  RENERM
BEAES
YmEMARAREBMARAERL
= EADTEFRET (THREE
KR ) A E AR (WA FEESL
RERETSENEARS - ZHR
AN(ZT—mF  m)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RAEBmAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
BFr —T—aF+_A=+—HIFE

12. Benefits and Interests of Directors and Key 12.

Management (Continued)

(g) Five highest paid individuals
In 2015 and 2014, the five individuals whose emoluments
were the highest in the Group included three (2014:
three) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to the
remaining two (2014: two) individuals during the year are
as follows:

Basic salaries, other allowances and
benefits in kind

Discretionary bonuses

Pension costs — contribution to

EARFS - HARER
BRI

miE S

RIRBAR — RS E BN

MPF scheme R

EERTEEEASZEFNRER

(%)

(9) HUBRSHMAL
R-F-—AER-F—WF  HALA
EESEHHALOE= I (ZF—m
=B SREEIHEER
REXHH « REEXM T EBRLL
(=T Mm% : WD) ALHFHAT -

2015 2014
—E-hF —T—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
2,536 2,532

375 917

36 33

2,947 3,482

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

It EMEE T5IEE

Number of individuals
ABEH

2015
—E-HF

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7C% 1,500,000 7T 1 1

HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7%2,000,0007% 7T 1 -

HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 042,500,000/ 7T - 1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AP MAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
BFr —T—haF+_A=+—HIFE

12. Benefits and Interests of Directors and Key 12. ESRFEEBABZEMNRER
Management (Continued) (#8)
(h) Key management compensation (h) FEEEASZHMH
Key management includes all directors presented FEEBABREMEESEI=u(Z
above and three (2014: three) senior management. The T—F =) EREEAE - mE
compensation paid or payable to key management for ZEEEABSTNMERAEERENER
employee services is shown below: SEMNMET
2015
—ZE-HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET
Basic salaries, other allowances and BEARF ¢ - HaRAER
benefits in kind BN 11,213 11,263
Discretionary bonuses MiEES 1,003 2,551
Pension costs — contribution to R —ssiE@stElfEL 2
MPF scheme R 131 133
12,347 13,947
The emoluments of senior management are within the BREBABZMEETTIESE -

following bands:

Number of employees

EEHE
2015
—E-RE
HK$0 — HK$ 1,000,000 07 % 1,000,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 721,500,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 752,000,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 722,500,000/ 7T - 1
13. Land Use Rights 13. T ifEFARE
The Group's interests in land use rights represent prepaid NEE 2 T E ARYIERAEEHERIE K
operating lease payments and their net book value are analysed as HEEEmFES T
follows:
2015 2014
—B-RF —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAT
At 1st January w—H—H 22,633 12,832
Additions NE - 10,475
Amortisation of land use rights TS AR (600) 411)
Exchange adjustment E R fR (911) (263)
At 31st December R+—A=+—H 21,122 22,633
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RAEBmAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
BE—FE—nF 1T _H=+—HIFE

14. Property, Plant and Equipment

Land and buildings

Perennial International Limited 1E#8 &£ E AR A 7

14.

YR ~ BB RE

(notes (a) to (c)
THRET (K E)Z()
Construction
Leasehold Plant and Furniture Office Motor Pleasure in progress
INHK  Outside HK improvements  machinery and fixtures  equipment vehicles boats (note (f)) Total
ERIR
& B £ BEREE GAREE  BOERG RE i (GE{) L)
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR TiEn TR TR TR
Net book value at RIE-RE-A-H
1st January 2015 ZEARE 17,770 170,252 4197 11,613 814 4,476 2,933 6,551 - 318,606
Additions AE - - 335 5,088 - 8n 795 - 10,008 17,098
Disposals e - - - (107) - (109) - - - (216)
Depreciation bk (3.445) (5329 (930) (2,935) (32) (565) (624) (626) - (14,486)
Transfer toinvestment ~ EARANE
property (18,570) - - - - - - - - (18,570)
Revaluation Bft 11,065 11,346 - - - - - - - 241
Exchange adjustment ~ EZ33% - (10,076) (119) (1,088) ) (131) ) = (138)  (1159)
Net book value at RZZ-1E
315t December 2015 +-A=+-A2
REFE 106,820 166,193 3483 12,571 775 4,543 3,061 5925 9,874 313,245
At31st December 2015 H=F-1%
+ZA=t-R
At cost R - - 1,770 82,642 5,205 12,946 6,580 14,767 9,874 143,784
At valuation-2015 f{8-2015 106,820 166,193 - - - - - - - 273,013
Accumulated depreciation  EfE47E - - (8,287) (70,071) (4.430) (8,403) (3,519) (8,842) = (103,552)
Net book value FEFE 106,820 166,193 3483 12,571 775 4,543 3,061 5925 9,874 313,245

Land and buildings

(notes (a) t
Leasehold Plant and Furniture Office Motor Pleasure  Construction
In HK improvements machinel and fitures ~ equipment vehicles boats ~in progress
S} Kz i & 8 BRI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'00 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL BT T AL T
Net book value at RZZ-PE-A-8
Ist January 2014 ZEEFE 115,300 145,787 5705 13,185 859 4533 1,848 7243 - 294,460
Additions HE - 23,79 - 1,825 - 583 1,720 - - 27924
Disposals hitS - - - 4) - B (35) - - (42)
Depreciation bk (3,440) (4,822) (1,439) (2,879 @) (575) (576) (692) - (14,464)
Revaluation Ef 5910 9,823 - - - - - - - 15,733
Exchange adjustment B3R - (4332 (69) (514) 4) (62) (24) - - (5,005)
Net book value at RZE-m%F
315t December 2014 +-A=+-R2
REFE 17,770 170,252 4197 11,613 814 4476 2933 6,551 - 318,606
At31stDecember 2014 R-F-EE
TZA=1-8
At cost wAR - - 11,814 81,133 5388 13,938 5849 14,767 - 132,889
At valuation-2014 f{E-2014 17,770 170,252 - - - - - - - 288,022
Accumulated depreciation  EfEH7E - - (7,617) (69,520) (4,574) (9,462) (2,916) (8,216) - (102,305)
Net book value REFE 17,770 170,252 4197 11,613 814 4476 2,933 6,551 - 318,606
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AP MAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
BFr —T—haF+_A=+—HIFE

14.

86

Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

(a

Land and buildings in Hong Kong and Mainland China
were revalued using open market basis or depreciated
replacement costs by Centaline Surveyors Limited, an
independent firm of chartered surveyors, as at 31st
December 2015 and 2014. The following tables analyses
the land and buildings carried at fair value, by valuation
methods.

Fair value hierarchy

Description

Recurring fair value measurements — &EMEA LB E

Land and buildings: T RESF
—in Hong Kong —(IRES
—in Mainland China — AR B K RE

14. ¥ BERREGE)

(a) R_E—RAFR_FT—NF+_A
—t+—B UREERPBEARENT
WREFHRE Y EEAEMTRAE
F{TERARIEARMEZZEESIT
ESFERAEMN - TRINILFABGEE
EDNE AR BEARN L RETF -

Fair value measurements at
31st December 2015 using
ZE-HEF+-A=+—-REAUT
BANARETE

Significant

other
observable
inputs
BERMHAM
ABREA
(Level 2)
(F=H)
HK$'000
FHET

Quoted prices
in active
markets for

Significant
unobservable
inputs

BAMH
TrIEEE A
(Level 3)
(B=4)
HK$°000
THET

identical assets
HEREEE
JEBTISRE
(Level 1)
(B—#%)
HK$'000
FHET

106,820
166,193

Description

Recurring fair value measurements & &M AL B E

Land and buildings: T REF
—in Hong Kong —RIREE
—in Mainland China — R AR B K e

Fair value measurements at
31st December 2014 using
—EFE+_A=1+—HBHEFERNUT
BAKAREFE
Significant
other
observable
inputs
BEARREAM
AIERBA
(Level 2)
(B=#%)
HK$'000
T

Quoted prices

in active

markets for
identical assets
HREEE
EERTIH I R(E
(Level 1)
(B—4%)
HK$'000
FHT

Significant
unobservable
inputs
EPN:()
PN

117,770
170,252

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfer into and
transfer out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused the
transfer.

There was no transfer between Level 1, 2, and 3 during
the year.

AREBZBRENERER 2 FMHH
REZPHMEARAEALBHAAE
B4 -

RENE— —R=FzMIEEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RAEBmAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
BE—FE—nF 1T _H=+—HIFE

14. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 14.
(a) (Continued)
Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3)

W BERRE(E)

(a) (&)
MAERTUBEGANDARENE
(B=4)

31st December 2015
“E-RF+=A=+—H
Land and Buildings in
buildings in Mainland
Hong Kong China Total
UREBZ AR B A pE
T REF ZEF fok o]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET FTET
At 1st January 2015 R-Z—R%—A—H 117,770 170,252 288,022
Depreciation e (3,445) (5,329) (8,774)
Transfer to investment property HEEILEE (18,570) - (18,570)
Net gains from fair value adjustment A (B FHB S H5E 11,065 11,346 22,411
Exchange adjustment fE AR = (10,076) (10,076)
As 31st December 2015 RZE—hF
+=-A=1+—H 106,820 166,193 273,013
Reversal of revaluation deficit for the ~ BRIRFERIEEMNEESE
year included in the consolidated ik ERABEE
income statement for assets [ EAas & s 58
held at the end of the year, HRERNFERER
under ‘other operating expenses, net’ Yzt - 506 506
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AP MAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
BFr —T—haF+_A=+—HIFE

14. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 14. Y% - BERSE(E)
() (Continued) (a (&)
Fair value measurements using significant FAERFTEEGANAAETE
unobservable inputs (Level 3) (Continued) (=4 (#)
31st December 2014
“T-E+—A=+—H
Land and Buildings in
buildings in Mainland
Hong Kong
REEZ
T REF |
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET FHET
At 1st January 2014 R-ZE—NF—HA—H 115,300 145,787 261,087
Additions NE - 23,796 23,796
Depreciation & (3,440) (4,822) (8,262)
Net gains from fair value adjustment AR EHEWZFE 5,910 9,823 15,733
Exchange adjustment PE KR - (4,332) (4,332)
As 31st December 2014 RZZE—F
+=—A=+—H 117,770 170,252 288,022
Revaluation deficit for the year TEiReEmA B Mg
included in the consolidated S F 8 | R R
income statement for assets REEFENEER
held at the end of the year, RELEE
under ‘other operating expenses, net’ - (506) (506)
Valuation processes of the Group AEENGERE
The Group’s land and buildings were valued at 31st REEN LM RIEFHBELEXMGE
December 2015 and 2014 by independent professional ME—ET—hAFER-ZT—NF+=A
qualified valuers who hold a recognised relevant =+—HfHE - LHERFEEER
professional qualification and have recent experience in AIEEERE - WHFTEER T i &
the locations and segments of the land and buildings FHH A B AT LS - BT A
valued. For all land and buildings, their current use equates T REF - HEROEASRER
to the highest and best use. EFSEER o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RAEBmAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
BFr —T—aF+_A=+—HIFE

14.

Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

Valuation processes of the Group (Continued)

The Group's finance department considers and discusses
the valuations performed by the independent valuers
for financial reporting purposes, including all key inputs
to the valuations and property valuations movements
as compared to the prior year. At 31st December 2015
and 2014, the fair values of the properties have been
determined by Centaline Surveyors Limited.

Valuation techniques

For land and buildings in Hong Kong, the valuation was
determined using the direct comparison approach with
reference to comparable transactions available in the
relevant market. Sales prices of comparable properties
in close proximity are adjusted for differences in key
attributes such as property size. The most significant input
into this valuation approach is price per square feet.

For buildings in Mainland China, the valuation was
determined using the depreciated replacement cost
approach with reference to the current cost of replacing
an asset with its modern equivalent asset less deductions
for all physical deterioration and all relevant forms of
obsolescence and optimisation based on significant
unobservable inputs. These inputs include:

Cost of construction

Cost per square metre to completion estimated by the
valuer based on the gross floor area using direct market
comparables and taking into account of life and size of
property and its facilities as at 31st December 2015 and
2014.

Estimated depreciation

Deducting all sources of depreciation by straight-
line method over the useful life, including physical
deterioration and functional and economic obsolescence
and adjusting by the physical condition of the building.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during
the year.
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14.

W% BERRE(E)

(a

(&)

TEBENGEERE(F)

RNEB TS s S B B
HEMOEEETEER®R - B21F
B GERSOMEEIEHALY
¥HERFFEEBETHES - K=
E-FFER _T-NEF+-_A=+—
H WEMENDAEERT RIS
ITERRAREE °

fhER

IR EEN LI RETFOHESER
BAmS A LR SMAEZ L BOEE
E o ERTAT LB ENEED I E
ZEFE (PN EEIE) 1) ZE RAE DL 5
o HHHEZEZNREABAREF
7T REVER -

MNRFBEARENEFHREE - 25U
REEEEENREMENBARRE
EhEBERATANREREILE
BEEENRARANBIEZTERAL
E O BEBRTAERGAEE - B
BABHE

FERRAA
HEMR-ZE-AFR-_ZE-OF
ToA=t - HMEREEAEERE
BEMISHEIEL LT AMERER
IR ERFREmEm G OEE T
AKIERBA

EEtiE
EREARASBFERERFHA
BERROITE - BIEENERNY
REME R EBRRE - WIRBFER
AORTIEH R -

R E RN SRS -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AP MAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
BFr —T—haF+_A=+—HIFE

14. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 14.

(@) (Continued)

Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) as at 31st

December 2015

Description

Valuation technique

fHER

Depreciated replacement

i

Buildings in Heyuan,

Mainland China cost approach
FIRPERETRNEF FESERLE

Buildings in Shenzhen,
Mainland China
IRARBIRERYIMET

Depreciated replacement
cost approach

FEEERAE

Land and buildings in Direct comparison

Hong Kong approach
IREENTHRET — BERRHBE

W% BERRE(E)

(a) (&)

R-E-RFE+-A=+—HFEHE
ATTEBERANDABEFEBNES

(B=8)

Unobservable inputs

FABREGA

Cost of construction of RMB1,650 per
square metre

BRAABETHKARE6507T

Estimated depreciation over the useful
life of 44 years
AR AR MO EEEHTE

Cost of construction of RMB3,000 per
square metre

B AT TR KARES 000

Estimated depreciation over the
useful life of 28 years and
41 years respectively
DRETRAFRN T N\FR
m+—F e

Sales prices, HK$14,350 per square
feet of a comparable property in
close proximity

THRENEHERS L RE
BT HR14,35087T

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value
TURTHA
HAAENBR

The higher the estimated cost per square
metre to completion, the higher
the fair value.
SEHRARBARE
DS -

The higher the estimated depreciation,
the lower the fair value.

fEEHERS - AnESE -

The higher the estimated cost per square
metre to completion, the higher
the fair value.

Y HABRAARR -

N

DREHS -

The higher the estimated depreciation,
the lower the fair value.

fEEHERS - AnESE -

The higher the sales price per square
feet of a comparable property in close
proximity, the higher the fair value

BYRRZEPRENEHER S

REMS  AnEMS-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RAEBmAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
BFr —T—aF+_A=+—HIFE

14. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

(a

(Continued)

Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) as at 31st
December 2014

Description

Valuation technique

Hit fRER i TAHEHA

Perennial International Limited 1EHS£E AR A T

14. Y% BERKZE(E)

(a

Valuation technique

Cost of construction of RMB1,650 per

Buildings in Heyuan, Depreciated replacement
Mainland China cost approach square metre
IR ERETRNEF FESERLE

Estimated depreciation over the useful

BERAABETHKARE6507T

life of 45 years

RuERERNN T RFERETE

Cost of construction of RMB2,800 per
square metre

BRMABSTHKARE2,8007T

Buildings in Shenzhen,
Mainland China
(iR B A B RY 1T

Depreciated replacement
cost approach

FEEERAL

Estimated depreciation over the

useful life of 29 years and

42 years, respectively
AREAI RN —tNE

R+ R E

Land and buildings,
in Hong Kong
IREEN LTI REF

Direct comparison
approach

BERIEE

Sales prices, HK$13,620 per square
feet of a comparable property in
close proximity

TEHREMEHER S KB
FFHR13,62087T

(%)
R-B-OF+-A=+—-HERE
RAAERBAND AEFTRNESR
(=8

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value
TARTHA

HARENBR

The higher the estimated cost per square
metre to completion, the higher
the fair value.

BYHRERRAES -
DREHE -

The higher the estimated depreciation,
the lower the fair value.

R ERS - AaEE -

The higher the estimated cost per square
metre to completion, the higher
the fair value.

The higher the estimated depreciation,
the lower the fair value.

EEHTERS - DaEsE -

The higher the sales price per square feet
of a comparable property in close
proximity, the higher the fair value.

BYHIRZEHRENEHERFHZ
REHS  AnBEHs -

The net book value of these land and buildings would
have been HK$70,323,000 (2014: HK$84,024,000) had
they been stated at cost less accumulated depreciation on
the historical cost basis.

At 31st December 2015, the net book value of land
and buildings pledged as security for the Group’s bank
borrowings amounted to HK$106,820,000 (2014:
HK$117,770,000).

The net book value of the Group's interests in leasehold
land classified as finance leases are held on leases of
between 10 to 50 years in Hong Kong amounted to
HK$92,270,000 (2014: HK$101,880,000).

Included in total depreciation expenses is an amount of
HK$8,083,000 (2014: HK$8,599,000) which has been
charged in ‘cost of sales’ and HK$6,403,000 (2014:
HK$5,865,000) in ‘administrative expenses'.

Construction work in progress as at 31st December 2015
mainly comprises new manufacturing plant, canteen and
dormitories.
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(b)

MZELREFHEEERAZE
BUKABEREZRBITEYR @ BlZE
BR ¥ (B € 4£70,323,00008 L (=&
—PO4E : 84,024,000/ 7T ) °

R-ZE—RAF+-_A=+—H8  E@
SH{E A 106,820,000/ 7T ( —ZF—Y
F 1 117,770,000 70 ) 2 L i R E
F o BEAREERITERZEM -

AEBHDBEAEEEHRERERER T
ERA+FZENEE L Z EEmFE
& 392,270,000 7t ( —ZF — M F
101,880,000/ 7T) °

BT E S HE 8,083,000 (=&
—PO4F : 8,599,000/ 7T) st Al HE K
7K | }%.6,403,0008 T (= — M4 :
5,865,000/ ) s ATTTERFSE | ©

RZE-—HF+ZRA=+—HZEZ
TRIZEEHERE  RENES -
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AP MAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
Bz —FE—nF 1T _H=F—HIFE

15. Investment Properties 15. BEWHE
2015
—E—hEF
HK$°000
FExT
At fair value BARE
Opening balance at 1st January R—RA—BZ A9 27,000 27,000
Transfer from property, plant and Y% - BEMSHEEBAZYE
equipment 18,570 -
Revaluation surplus credited to the BHBRMAGEERE
consolidated income statement 600 -
Net book value at 31st December R+ A=+—HZ2EmFE 46,170 27,000

RZZE—RAF+A=+—8  AEEF}X
KEERRERERBHEOVET(ZT—X

As at 31st December 2015, the Group had no unprovided
contractual obligations for future repairs and maintenance (2014:

Nil).

The Group's investment properties are held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties through

FoE)

FAAEEREMEZEN - SERLHEMHE
FEBAR DB ME AR BNz - AEEE
R EZFREYERPRE T X — B2 R E

EBE A BAULXERENEZEREZRY
N2 BT IR (M5E8) -

sale. The Group has measured the deferred tax relating to the
temporary differences of these investment properties using the
tax rate and the tax bases that are consistent with the expected
manner of recovery of these investment properties (note 8).

RZE—RER-_ZT—WNF+=5
=+—H BREAVEHRBLEEMGE
B ORI ERMTTE R A GIEARMIE
ZEESH - BEHBREIIFTALEE
mER N EMEERYFREIN - TK
IR F B HEEDITIEAREBEARN

(a) Investment properties were revalued on the basis of (a
open market valued by Centaline Surveyors Limited,
an independent firm of chartered surveyors, as at 31st
December 2015 and 2014. The revaluation gains or
losses is included in ‘other operating expenses, net’ in
the consolidated income statement. The following table

analyses the investment properties carried at fair value, by WEME -
valuation method.
Fair value hierarchy AREER

Fair value measurements at
31st December 2015 using
—E2-FF+=-HA=+-—H
FERUTEANAAEFE

Quoted prices Significant
in active other
markets for observable
identical assets inputs
HEREEE EREM
JEBT IS HRE AR A
(Level 1) (V= )
(E—#R) (B=#)
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER

Significant
unobservable
inputs

BAMH
TrIEERE A
(Level 3)
(B=#R%)
HK$'000
TERT

Description

Recurring fair value measurements & FHEA L EFE

Investment properties REME - - 46,170
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RAEBmAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
BFr —T—aF+_A=+—HIFE

15. Investment Properties (Continued) 15. REWE(E)
() (Continued) (a (&)
Fair value hierarchy ARERER

Fair value measurements at
31st December 2014 using
—E-HFE+ZA=+—H
FERRTBRARNARETE
Quoted prices Significant
in active other Significant
markets for observable unobservable

identical assets inputs inputs

HRBEE EPN:0E i BHARH

Description s JEE TSR R(E AERE A TAERE A
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

(B—%H) (BE=#) (B=%)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THET THETT FHET

Recurring fair value measurements &4 Q 4 EEHE
Investment property &Y - - 27,000

The Group's policy is to recognise transfer into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused the
transfer.

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 during
the year.

Valuation processes of the Group
See note 14(a) for valuation processes of the Group.

Valuation techniques

The valuation of investment properties were determined
using the direct comparison approach with reference to
comparable transactions available in the relevant market.
Sales prices of comparable properties in close proximity
are adjusted for differences in key attributes such as
property size. The most significant input into this valuation
approach is price per square feet.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during
the year.
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AREZ B RN EREE 2 F %
BB A MRS A SN R E
B -

FRNE— - Z R=BHRzEHESE
% o

REBNGERE
A2HMFE 14 RENEERES

1/'\ °

fhER
BREVENEESZHEAM S LR
RHNABEELBOEET » AL
EMENEBCD T 2EE (HIY)
EEE)WERELAR - HitHEE
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AP MAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
BFr —T—haF+_A=+—HIFE

15. Investment Properties (Continued) 15. REWE(E)

(a) (Continued) (@)
Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) as at
31st December 2015

(&)
R-ZE-EHF+-A=+-BEAE
ATTERBABB(E=R) 2R
EHIFBZEHR

Relationship of unobservable

Description Valuation technique Unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
TABERRABER
B fRIER TABERAEE AEZER
Land and buildings Direct comparison (1) Sales prices, HK$5,154 per square  The higher the sales prices per square
in Hong Kong approach feet of a comparable property in feet of a comparable property in close
MREBZ THRET — EELEE close proximity proximity, the higher the fair value
THREMEHERS BEARTEHRENRHERS R E
REGTFAHRS, 15487 HE AnEdS

(2) Sales prices, HK$15,462 per square
feet of a comparable property in

close proximity
TEMEENEHER S
REGTEHRI5462ET

Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) as at 31st
December 2014

R-ZE-WE+-A=+-AEAE
RABRGABB(F=R) 2R
B BZEHR

Relationship of unobservable

Description Valuation technique Unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
TURTHABER
B fEER TURERAHE ANREZBR
Land and buildings Direct comparison Sales prices, HK$5,011 per square feet  The higher the sales prices per square
in Hong Kong approach of a comparable property in close feet of a comparable property in close
MREBz LREF  EEHE proximity proximity, the higher the fair value
TEREMEHERS BYARAEEENEHERS 2K E
REGTFHRS,011%T BE - AREYS
(b) At 31st December 2015, the net book value of (b) RZZE—RFE+-_A=+—H8 K&

investment properties pledged as security for the Group’s
bank borrowings amounts to HK$46,170,000 (2014:
HK$27,000,000).

(0 The revaluation surplus is included in ‘other operating (@)
expenses, net’ in the consolidated income statement.
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B R1TE KA BRE $ 846,170,000/
o (ZZ—PO4F : 27,000,000/ 7T ) K
WEEERIER -

EHASERERSBRERMNEML
BRSOFR IR -
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RAEBmAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
BFr —T—aF+_A=+—HIFE

Perennial International Limited 1E#8 &£ E AR A 7

16. Inventories 16. =&
2015 2014
—F-IF e
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FHETT
Raw materials A 16,393 22,946
Work in progress TR 25,578 30,705
Finished goods BURK G 53,323 59,708
95,294 113,359
Provision for slow-moving inventories 18 RFERE (5,375) (5,155)
89,919 108,204
The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and included FERARHERARERWIIANEEKEKIH
in“cost of sales” amounted to HK$225,252,000 (2014: & #8 H 5 225,252,000 L ( — T — M 4F :
HK$266,194,000), which included provision for slow-moving 266,194,000/ 7C) - EBRFEEAFERE
inventories of HK$220,000 (2014: provision for slow-moving 220,000 7T - (ZZ—NF - EREFERE
inventories of HK$2,082,000). 2,082,000 L) °
17. Trade and Bill Receivables 17. BREZFERIRREE

At 31st December 2015, the ageing analysis of trade and bill
receivables based on invoice date is as follows:

Up to 3 months BIEAZ= = A A
4-6 months mEAZ=NEA
Over 6 months A E A
Provision for returns and doubtful debts RE N REREE

REZ-RF+-A=1+—0 BEREZER
REBRBEHZAMZRESTNT -

2015 2014
—Z—HF —T—mHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
83,926 83,412
8,566 6,313

316 8,453
92,808 98,178

) (8,159)

92,806 90,019

The Group’s trade and bill receivables are mainly denominated in
HK$ and USD, and are due within one year from the end of the
reporting period. The carrying value of trade and bill receivables
approximates their fair value due to their short term maturities.

At 31st December 2015, trade receivables of HK$76,276,000

(2014: HK$73,344,000) and bill receivables of HK$2,036,000
(2014:1,769,000) were fully performing.
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REEEKEZERNMFBEEZABTRET
BE - MNIRE AR AR —FARIE - E

1El7-v—

WESERRRR 2 RRERELAAEHRNIRE

HESEH o

R-Z—AFE+=-A=+—H " 76,276,000
;‘%r‘c(*%—mi : 73,344,000 7T ) 2 &
Hﬂzfé’% % %2,036,0008 L ( = ZF — U F :
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AP MAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
BFr —T—haF+_A=+—HIFE

17.

Trade and Bill Receivables (Continued) 17.
At 31st December 2015, the ageing analysis of trade receivables
which were past due but not impaired is as follows:

FEWE SRR RS (&

RZE-RF+A=+—H 2afersE
MERWE SRR Z R I

2015 2014

—E—h%E —F—NF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FH&T

Up to 3 months BNEAZ= = 1§ A 14,029 14,435
4-6 months VOfE A =75 1E A 229 84
Over 6 months @@ E A 236 387
14,494 14,906

AR H)EME SRR TETTRER A B R
ETHEERWLBRZBIER - MACDKE
BHENE BRSSO

The trade receivables included in the above ageing are considered
not impaired as these relate to a number of independent
customers for whom there is no recent history of default. All
impaired overdue trade receivables have been provided for.

As at 31st December 2015, trade receivables of HK$2,000 (2014:
HK$8,159,000) were impaired and provided for. The credit quality
of trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired has

R-ZB—RHF+-A=+—H - 2,0008T(=
T—PU4F : 8,159,000/ 7L) 7 FEE ZEERE,
BB MR - ABB I ERENRERE S
ERNEEEREERR S HFHR L ENE
SERMEL S - RANRSHFERELE
BARIERFOEE ©

been assessed by reference to historical information about the
counterparties’ default rates. The existing counterparties do not
have significant defaults in the past.

FEUE SRR B BEEINT

Movements on the provision for trade receivables are as follows:

2015 2014
—E-RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

At 1st January n—H—H 8,159 8,383

Witten off during the year as uncollectible RN gElk B 1R B #itR (7,993) -
Reversal of provision for returns and BERE R RIREE

doubtful debts (164) (224)

At 31st December W+—A=+—H 2 8,159

BERERREBEHI AL E R F
5 £ 5 H 164,000 T ( - —PUE
224,000 7T) °

The reversal of provisions for returns and doubtful debts has
been included in ‘other operating expenses, net’ amounted to
HK$164,000 (2014: HK$224,000).
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RAEBmAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
BFr —T—aF+_A=+—HIFE

17. Trade and Bill Receivables (Continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting
period is the carrying value of trade and bill receivables mentioned
above. The Group did not hold any collateral as security.

Payment terms with customers are mainly on credit with the
exception of new customers, which are on cash on delivery basis.
Invoices are normally payable within 30 to 90 days of issuance.
Longer payment terms might be granted to customers that have
long-term business relationships with the Group and did not have
default in payments in the past history.

18. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash at banks and in hand RITREGFRS

Perennial International Limited 1E#8 &£ E AR A 7

BWE Z &R ERE (&)
REFEHERAZAEERRER LIEKE
SRR MR REE - AKERAWEUER
mntE AR o

BEPEXZ2UEETANMNK  HHEFPANER
MERUREMNHK - —RME - EPAREER
FHE=TENTHANR - MREHERTR
EAEEARPEBREZES  IEXEAR
RZ 5 -

18. RERBAEEEY

2015 2014

—E-HF =

HK$°000
TERT

66,560

HK$'000
TAT

55,526

66,560 55,526

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the
reporting period of the Group is cash at banks amounting to
HK$66,262,000 (2014: HK$55,197,000).

RFEHERAAEEZAEERRRRT
B4 7 &89 51A66,262,0008 T( —F
—PO4F : 55,197,000 7T) °

2015
—ZE-HF

2014
—T—JF
HK$'000
FHTT

HK$"000
TR

Denominated in: EERN
HK$ BT 11,401 19,515
RMB (note (a)) AR (M5 @) 10,310 18,360
usb ET 44,488 17,058
Other currencies HEmmEr 361 593
66,560 55,526
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AP MAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
BFr —T—haF+_A=+—HIFE

18. Cash and Cash Equivalents (Continued) 18. RERAESEEWE)

(a) Included in the balance of the Group are bank balances (a) BRBEEAERATRAEZIRE R
and cash deposited in Mainland China of approximately RITHFE R LIRS % A8,936,000/% 7T
HK$8,936,000 (2014: HK$10,618,000). Bank balances ZZ—M4F : 10,618,000/ L) °
and cash mainly denominated in RMB are subject to the EUARBEBEM 2 RITERRE
exchange control restrictions imposed by the government & TH R A B & i 2 IMNE &
in Mainland China. BRI -

19. Share Capital 19. R
No. of shares HK$'000
RAEE FAT
Authorised SETERRAR
At 31st December 2015 and RZE—RAF+-_A=1+—HRK
31st December 2014, R-ZE—NFE+-_A=+—8 -
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each FRREEC.10E L Tk 500,000,000 50,000
Issued and fully paid BT REE R
At 31st December 2015 and R-ZE—RAF+-_A=1+—BK
31st December 2014, R-ZTE—WFE+—-_A=+—8 -
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BREE0.10B T2 LRk 198,958,000 19,896
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RAEBmAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
BFr —T—aF+_A=+—HIFE

20. Reserves 20. f#E

Land and
Exchange  buildings Capital
Share fluctuation revaluation redemption Total other ~ Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve reserves earnings Total

EX25 1HRET &%
Bty fife Eftfite HORE SHHEE  REER 3
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

TAT FAT TAL TR TER TAT TAT
At 1st January 2015 RZZ-1%-A-H 15,885 22,980 169,893 104 208,862 264,315 473,171
Profit for the year AEEGH - - - - - 11,688 11,688

Revaluation surplus on T RET ERRS

land and buildings - - 21,905 - 21,905 - 21,905
Deferred tax charged to 1B EfL

revaluation reserve EIERE - - (1,711) = (1.711) = (1.1
Exchange difference arising  FiiB ARSI ik 2

from translation of SR ERER

financial statements of

subsidiaries - (14,591) - - (14,591) = (14,591)
Dividend paid YRS = = - - - (3,980) (3,980)

At 31st December 2015 R-E—1%E

+-ZRA=+—-H 15,885 8,389 190,087 104 214,465 272,023 436,488

At 1st January 2014 R-E—mE—A—H 15,885 29,852 156,609 104 202,450 253,358 455,808
Profit for the year KEEEF - - - - - 18,917 18,917
Revaluation surplus on THREFCEREHS

land and buildings - - 16,239 - 16,239 - 16,239
Deferred tax charged to ~ fIR Efh Y

revaluation reserve ELHE - - (2,955) - (2,955) - (2,955)
Exchange difference arising  MIBA R KHR 2

from translation of S EEER

financial statements of

subsidiaries - (6,872) - - (6,872) - (6,872)
Dividend paid YRS - - - - - (7,960) (7,960)

At 31st December 2014 RZE—MF
+-A=1+—H 15,885 22,980 169,893 104 208,862 264,315 473,177
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AP MAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
BFr —T—haF+_A=+—HIFE

21. Trade and Bill Payables and Other Payables 21. ENEBESREREERHEMENT
and Accruals HREHAX
2015 2014
—E-AfF —E—FE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T
Trade and bill payables JERTE 578 R EE
(note (a)) (FfsE(@)) 24,011 32,910
Other payables and accruals H R RIE R EET 28,381 29,155
Total (note (b) and (c)) #E (M) K (o)) 52,392 62,065
(a) At 31st December 2015, the ageing analysis of trade and (a) R-ZT—RF+-_A=+—8 BN
bill payables based on invoice date is as follows: EORRMEREEEZAHZER
DT -
2015 2014
—E-EfF —EFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT T
Up to 3 months BIEAE=MEA 21,761 27,485
4 — 6 months H1E A =/~ E 2,236 4,439
Over 6 months BN E A 14 986
24,011 32,910
(b) Trade and bill payables and other payables and accruals (b) EE S 508 REIR & E A IE
are denominated in the following currencies: KFEETFX AT E R H
2015 2014
—B-HF —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
HK$ BT 17,096 25,080
RMB ARH 20,781 19,240
usb ET 12,208 16,717
Other currencies HAih B 2,307 1,028
52,392 62,065
(0 The carrying value of trade and bill payables and other (0 FER'E 5 508 R BB K H At FE A~ 5018
payables and accruals approximates their fair values due to MR 2 REEEE R ERL
their short term maturities. FEHEGFH -
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RAEBmAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
BFr —T—aF+_A=+—HIFE

22,

Borrowings

Current liabilities REEE
Trust receipt loans EFEBUEER
Bank loan RITIEE
Total borrowings HBIER

Perennial International Limited 1E#8 &£ E AR A 7

22. fBX
2015 2014
—E-F1F —T—mE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FHIT
27,320 40,806
17,917 -
45,237 40,806

Total borrowings included secured liabilities of
HK$24,271,000(2014: HK$40,806,000), which are secured by
land and buildings and investment properties of the Group (notes
14 and 15). The borrowings are supported by guarantees given by
the Company and its certain subsidiaries.

(a

The maturity of borrowings is as follows:

—E-hfF
HK$'000

On demand or within 1 year 1R

REFBIEEEITEE24,271,0008 (==
—PU4F : 40,806,000/78 70) A AN E E A L3 &
BFRIEEWMEEEIR(EE14%15) o &K
HAARR REMBARIREER -

(a) fERHEIHBIT

Bank loan
RITER
2015

Trust receipt loans
EREBEER

2015

—Z2-1F

HK$000

FHBT

27,320

2014
TN
HK$'000
FExT FAT

17,917 -

2014
—F-mE
HK$°000
BT

40,806

(b) The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate
changes and the contractual repricing dates at the end of

the reporting date are as follows:

RIS BRERA - AEEIERIEF
FHB R A FEH QA
AR -

(b)

Bank loan Trust receipt loans
RITER SREBEER
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-HF —E-NF  ZE-HF —TNF
HK$'000 HK$°000 HKS$000 HK$°000
THET THET FTHET THET
6 months or less FE R SIS E B AR 17,917 - 27,320 40,806
101
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year ended 31st December 2015

E—AF 1T A=1—HIFFE

Borrowings (Continued)
(@

The average effective interest rates at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

22,

B ()
©  REBESWERAHTHEBENRMT -

Trust receipt loans ERREER 2.23% 2.22%
Bank loan RITER 2.22% -
(d) Borrowings are mainly denominated in HK$. (d) BREBNBLLEE -
(e) The carrying value of borrowings approximates their fair (e) ERHREEERE AR EEL -
values.
Derivative Financial Instruments 23. fTHEEmIA

EHINER L —

Forward foreign exchange contracts
- held for trading

//

IR

i

2015
—E-RE
Liabilities Liabilities
=L
HK$'000

T

=V
HK$'000
TERT

= 1,207

The Group entered into forward foreign exchange contracts
with a bank to sell USD in exchange for RMB at predetermined
rates, settled on a monthly basis for its operating use. As at
31st December 2014, the notional principal amounts of the
outstanding forward exchange contracts were USD4,900,000
(equivalent to HK$37,953,000), which were settled at specified
date of each month up to 23rd July 2015, for selling USD700,000
per month in exchange for RMB at strike rate of 6.075.

There is no forward exchange contract held by the Group as at
31st December 2015.

The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts are
determined using quoted forward exchange rates at the end of
the reporting period.

RNEBEIRITR] IR HASNE & #9 DATERR H R R
BHETLUELARE - iR AGEERCER
BoNZE—NMFT_A=+—HBRGEHEEH
SN A 4 A4,900,0003 7T (£1{E37,953,00078
L) BEZE—AFEtA-+=H1t BAK
Z1T{E & % 6.0750H 700,000 7T JAFE 5 A
R# o

AEER-_ZT-—hF+-_A=+—HLESE
REINES A o

RIREHERA - BHINESNAABEERE
HERHAERPDRE
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For the year ended 31st December 2015
BFr —T—aF+_A=+—HIFE

24,

Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash 24, SZEBEERERKE

Flows
(a) Reconciliation of profit before taxation (a) HEELNTEHLHERHA
to net cash generated from operations Al Z $ BR
2015 2014
—E-AEF —E—UFE
HK$"000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Profit before taxation B R AT 15,210 25,916
Interest income FLEMA (184) (394)
Bank loans interest IRITERF B 965 1,029
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BEREREEE
plant and equipment 97 16
Gain on revaluation of WEMEHES
investment property (600) -
(Reversal of revaluation deficit)/ (BemEfGIEL) BT EMIBL
revaluation deficit of building (506) 506
Amortisation of land use rights + 3t {5 P AR £ 600 411
Depreciation of owned property, BEYE  BMEMRETE
plant and equipment 14,486 14,464
Reversal of provision for returns and B OIRE R RIREE
doubtful debts (164) (224)
Change in unrealised loss on derivative T4 ¢ TE
financial instruments REIREEE (1,207) 1,207
Provision for slow-moving inventories (&R FE#EE 220 2,082
Operating profit before working EBECEEA 2 LB EF
capital changes 28,917 45,013
Decrease in inventories FERD 16,091 101
(Increase)/decrease in trade and bill FEUE FRRA N ZEE &
receivables and other receivables, HEmEWERER 5Tk
deposits and prepayments T ERIEGEM), R (2,740) 12,182
Decrease in trade and ENESREREER
bill payables and other payables Hfh fERTRRIE K
and accruals FERTRISZ R (9,403) (4,776)
Net cash generated from operations BEEANFEERES 32,865 52,520
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For the year ended 31st December 2015
BFr —T—haF+_A=+—HIFE

24. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash 24, SZEBERERMT(E)
Flows (Continued)

(b) Analysis of disposal of property, plant (b) HEWE  BERXEDN
and equipment
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds ERAHERERN  HEWME - |
from sale of property, plant and equipment comprise: B M ERABFTISEBIE
2015 2014
—E-—RF —Z—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FT
Net book value BREFE 216 42
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BEREREEE
plant and equipment (97) (16)
Proceeds from sale of property, LEWE  BE RBRESER
plant and equipment 119 26
(c) Analysis of changes in financing during () FAMBELBSMN
the year

Bank loan Trust receipt loans
SBRITER EREBBER
2015 2014 2015 2014

—E2HF —TMF  —FT-—HF | —TOEF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
THER FAIT TERT FAT

At 1st January Kn—H—H - - 40,806 40,751
Additions of loans g ER 20,000 - 115,867 142,852
Repayments of loans BIEER (2,083) - (129,353)  (142,797)
At 31st December Rt+t-—A=1+—H 17,917 - 27,320 40,806
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RAEBmAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
BFr —T—aF+_A=+—HIFE

25. Commitments 25. RiE
(@) Capital commitments (a)
At 31st December 2015, the Group had the following
capital commitments for leasehold improvements,
property, plant and machinery, office equipment and
motor vehicles:

BAEIE
RZZ—RAF+-A=+—H0 %%
BAENTRE W% - BFE RS -
MDERERITEZBAANSE

2015 2014
—E-FF —TpuE
HK$"000 HK$'000
THET FHBT
Contracted but not provided for EETHVEREE 21,960 878
(b) Commitments under operating leases as (b) BUEBEALKLEHERE
lessee

At 31st December 2015, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases as follows:

RZTE—AFE+-_A=+—0 K&
EE NI HEELHENBEZHIE
HERRET

Land and buildings and
office equipment

THREFR
WAERE
2015 2014
—E-AfF —E—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FA&T
Not later than one year —&FR 705 203
Later than one year and —FRETZHRAF
no later than five years 134 30
839 233
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AP MAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
BFr —T—haF+_A=+—HIFE

26. Financial Guarantees and Pledge 26.

At 31st December 2015, the Group has the following banking
facilities, of which HK$460,018,000 (2014: HK$495,415,000)
were secured by legal charges over certain land and buildings and
investment properties of the Group with a total net book value of
HK$152,990,000 (2014: HK$144,770,000).

B EERRIEH
R_E—RAF+_A=+—8B AEBEZIR
1TRLE - 49460,018,00058 7T ( =T — P4 :
495,415,000 70) A AR E B LR FES &
152,990,0007%& 70 ( ZZF — 4 : 144,770,000
BIL) 2 E T L REFRIEEWMEMEZE
TEHEA -

Trade and loan finance facilities B REERE
Forward exchange contract line RHINESHEEE

2015 2014
—E—FF —E—HF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHET
238,917 256,577
279,018 278,838

In addition, the Company and its certain subsidiaries also provided
guarantees in favour of the banks to secure these banking facilities
granted to the Group.

27. Ultimate Holding Company 27.

The Directors of the Company regard Spector Holdings Limited,
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, as being the
ultimate holding company.

28. Subsidiaries 28.

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31st
December 2015.

Place of incorporation/  Paid up share capital/
EL N registered capital

s/ FR L8 BRRA/ERER

Shares held directly
EERERA
Perennial Holdings Global Limited ~ British Virgin Islands Ordinary USD1
EEETHS LERIET
Shares held indirectly
BERERGD
Ever Peak Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$3
KHERERAT BE EERIET
New Technology Cable Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000
HRERBRAHA Bl L3EA1,000%7T
Non-voting Deferred
HK$10,000,000
ERZERERN
10,000,000/ T

106

SN - AR E R E B R AN EEEUSRTT
BE - WEMRITIRHEIER

RAEZER A A
ARAREERRERBREREESTMZ
Spector Holdings Limited Jy &A% 32 B A &)

B B8 2> =]
RIE-—FAF+_A=1+—H  A2aEET
TIEBWHEAR :

Principal activities Interest
TERHB i

2015
—E-1E

Investment holding 100% 100%
REER
Property holding 100% 100%
BEDE
License holding 100% 100%
BERR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RAEBmAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
BFr —T—aF+_A=+—HIFE

28. Subsidiaries (Continued) 28. MBATE (&)

Place of incorporation/  Paid up share capital/
EL N registered capital Principal activities Interest

i/ FR B BRRA/HERERX  IEER it

2015 2014
“E-1F _—T-NF

Shares held indirectly

(Continued)
BESERS (H)
Perennial Cable (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2,000,000  Trading of electric cables, 100% 100%
wires, wire harness and
accessories
EHER (BE) BRAF Bl EiEMk2,0000008T EEER HR-
BABRREH
Perennial Cable Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary USD1 Investment and property 100% 100%
holding
EHERERAT EBEAHS LERIET RERFANER
(@  Perennial Cable (Shenzhen) Co., Mainland China Registered capital Manufacturing of electric 100% 100%
Limited (wholly owned foreign HK$65,000,000 cables, wires and wire
enterprise) harness
BEEE& (RY) BRAR hEIARE EMER HEER BRR
(REREEEIMER) 65,000,00077C BERR
Perennial Plastics (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Trading of plastic resins and 100% 100%
compounds
EHER (%) FRAR BiE LER2ET BEEBAREERILAY
Perennial Cable (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary USD50,000 Investment holding 100% 100%
EREFBVVERAF EBETHS LiBAR50,000% T RERR
New Technology Cable Pte. Singapore Ordinary 5G$2 License holding 100% 100%
Limited
A LER2FMET HRER
Shinka K.K. Japan Ordinary JPY10,000,000  License holding 100% 100%
B EER10,000000AT  HEHE
(b)  Perennial USA Inc. United States of America  Ordinary USD1 Trading of electric cables, 100% 100%
wires, wire harness and
accessories
% LERIET HEESR B8R
BERRREH
(@  Shenzhen Welldone Trading Mainland China Registered capital Trading of electric cables, 100% 100%
Co., Limited (wholly owned HKD$1,000,000 wires, wire harness
foreign enterprise) and accessories
AEREEREHERLA LIEN AMER EEER &
(REBEEEIMELE) 1,000,00037C BEERREN
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AP MAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
BFr —T—haF+_A=+—HIFE

28. Subsidiaries (Continued) 28.

Place of incorporation/  Paid up share capital/
EL N registered capital

i/ FR B BRRAE/HERER

Shares held indirectly

(Continued)
BESERS (H)
(a)  Shenzhen Perennial Plastics Mainland China Registered capital
and Metal Co., Limited HK$40,000,000
(wholly owned foreign
enterprise)
RINERZBREERAR EEN: AfER
(REEBIINES) 40,000,000/ 7T
(@) Shenzhen Perennial Plastics Mainland China Registered capital
Co., Limited (wholly owned HK$10,000,000
foreign enterprise)
RIBREBERAR EEN AfER
(REHEBRIMEE) 10,000,000/%7¢
() Heyuan Perennial Plastics and Mainland China Paid up share capital
Metal Co., Limited RMB39,000,000

(wholly owned foreign enterprise)

TREHEBTSER AT REARE BYER
(ZBHABIMER) 39,000,000 A R

The legal form of all the above companies is limited liability
company.

Save as noted below, the above companies operate principally
in Hong Kong instead of their respective places of incorporation/
establishment, except for:

(a) Perennial Cable (Shenzhen) Co., Limited, Shenzhen
Welldone Trading Co., Limited, Shenzhen Perennial Plastics
and Metal Co., Limited and Shenzhen Perennial Plastics
Co., Limited are in Shenzhen, the People’s Republic of
China.

(b) Perennial USA Inc. is in the United States of America.

(0) Heyuan Perennial Plastics and Metal Co., Limited is in
Heyuan, the People’s Republic of China.

108

B8~ B (A&

Principal activities Interest
TEEH i
2015
“E-EfF

Manufacturing and sale of 100% 100%
electric cables, wires, wire
harness and accessories

HERFEER B8R
BaBRRER

Manufacturing and sale 100% 100%
of plastic resins and
compounds

HERHEEB A KR
Rita

Manufacturing and sale 100% 100%
of electric cables, wires,
wire harness
and accessories
HEREESR B
HEGRRES

FilFrE ARG RBRABNER -

BRATRERRSN - Bl AR 8 BHHEEAE
AT IEEE R, B B

(a) EBERELKOFRINERAR - RINEK
EEREZHAERAT - RYEHER
TeARABILRINERERBERA
AR EARAMBIRIIFE -

(b) Perennial USA Inc.fZiAZER] -
(© TREERERBAS AR AR AT E

ARKMBGART

Annual Report 2015 =& — R FF R



Perennial International Limited 1E#8 &£ E AR A 7

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RAEBmAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
BFr —T—aF+_A=+—HIFE

29. Statement of Financial Position and Reserve 29. HMBEMRERRRBEEBE
Movement of the Company

Statement of Financial Position B R AR R 3=
2015 2014
—B-RHF e
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET BT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERHEE
Investments in subsidiaries BB AR ZERE 62,738 62,738
Current assets MEEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUPT BB A FIFRIE 62,191 62,079
Other receivables, deposits and HEWERR - 5T &
prepayments TastRIA 395 245
Cash and cash equivalents BEMBEEEEY 223 96
62,809 62,420
Total assets BEE 125,547 125,158
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Equity attributable to shareholders RATRRIE(E S
of the Company
Share capital [N 19,896 19,896
Other reserves H it EEE 78,537 78,537
Retained earnings REB R 26,833 26,543
Total equity Ak 125,266 124,976
LIABILITIES =N
Current liabilities MEAE
Other payables and accruals HoAh e FE N BT R ST 281 182
Total liabilities FEy=NE 281 182
Total equity and liabilities wEmkEas 125,547 125,158
The statement of financial position of the Company was approved ARARZHBERRAERRE—RF=A+HH
by the Board of Directors on 15th March 2016 and was signed on REEZSI ETRREE
its behalf
MON Chung Hung SIU Yuk Shing, Marco
iR BIBRK
Director Director
g 3

Annual Report 2015 =& — R FF R 109



Perennial International Limited E&S£EER 2
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AP MAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
BFr —T—haF+_A=+—HIFE

29. Statement of Financial Position and Reserve 29. HIBRRRRFEEEHR(E)
Movement of the Company (Continued)

(a) Reserve Movement (a) fREEH
Contributed Capital
Share surplus  redemption  Total other Retained
premium (note) reserves reserves earnings Total
BB -
R EE BEEfE SHtREE REEF ay
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL AL AL AL BT ]
At 1st January 2015 RZE—hF—A—H 15,885 62,548 104 78,537 26,543 105,080
Profit for the year KEERF - - - - 4,270 4,270
Dividend paid YRS - - - - (3,980) (3,980)
At 31st December 2015 R-BE-R%E
+-A=+—H 15,885 62,548 104 78,537 26,833 105,370
Representing: HER
2015 final dividend proposed ~ —Z— T FEHRH
LRERE 3,980
Others Hf 22,853
Retained eamings as at Hz-Z2-1F
31st December 2015 +ZA=1+-HLt
ZIRBEF 26,833
At 1st January 2014 RZE-mE-A—AH 15,885 62,548 104 78,537 26,534 105,071
Profit for the year KEFREF - - - - 7,969 7,969
Dividend paid THRE - - - - (7,960) (7,960)
At 315t December 2014 RZE-mE
+-h=+-H 15,885 62,548 104 78,537 26,543 105,080
Representing: RER
2014 final dividend proposed  —Z—IIF#ERE
LRERE 3,980
Others Hi 22,563
Retained earings as at HE-ZfF
31st December 2014 +ZA=+—RLt
ZREEF 26,543
note:  The contributed surplus of the Company arose when the Kiit : ARNEZHBABFEHLR G ETRGUAK
Company issued shares in exchange for the shares of subsidiaries B R Gl R 17 & BB ATH IR L A]
being acquired in connection with the reorganisation of the LT R EA A E [T AR 2 BT 2 A2 AR
Group prior to its listing on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong WDMESE  HERERBZETRGZEH
Limited, and represents the difference between the nominal value G FENT B 1 5] 2 BE FEZEH -
of the Company’s shares issued and the value of net assets of RIEEFRE—NN—FLEE(AEEET) -
the subsidiaries acquired. Under the Companies Act of 1981 of BABRAITRSRTRE - LAEFZE
Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus is distributable B BMABBRTEF B EEBNEAR A
to the shareholders. At Group level, the contributed surplus ZE B S5 o
is reclassified into its component reserves of the underlying

subsidiaries.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RAEBmAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2015
BE—FE—nF 1T _H=+—HIFE

30. Approval of the Consolidated Financial 30. MREMBmKRZAE
Statements
The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board NEAMBERRENR —_E—R"F=-A+HA%E
of Directors on 15th March 2016. BEEelE -
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Financial Highlights
BB

2015 2014 2012
—T-RFf _—TOF T—= —T——fF

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT TAT TAT TR

Operating results (HK$'000) S&%&(FEx)

Revenue = 401,669 455,403 466,706 430,958 472,445
Operating profit R 16,175 26,945 31,542 26,006 17,084
Profit for the year KEERF 11,688 18,917 21,216 19,954 15,275

Financial position (HK$'000)  Bi#&#ARR (Fi&T)
Net current assets AR FE 153,955 152,541 166,179 144,058 135,652
Shareholders' funds BRES 506,384 493,073 475,704 451,171 383,027

Per share data (HK$ cent) BREE(BWL)

Earnings per share — basic BREM-EX

and diluted Ji¢ S 5.9 9.5 10.7 10.0 7.7
Dividend per share (interim B E (R

and final dividend) RAHER L) 2 4 3 3 3
Key Statistics TEH
Inventory turnover (days) FERE(XE) 110 108 96 86 74
Debtors’ turnover (days) e R ES (KRB 84 72 80 85 79
Creditors' turnover (days) JETBRIRE (K8 43 47 45 43 35
Acid-test ratio (%) BN (%) 163.3% 141.4% 147.5% 137.0% 1332%
Working capital (%) EEEE(%) 252.1% 242.5% 245.8% 198.0% 181.7%
Total liabilities/total capital MEE/HER

employed (%) BR(%) 26.9% 28.6% 30.6% 39.5% 49.0%
Return on capital employed EAERREE

(operating profit/ (s H, R

shareholders’ funds) (%) E2)(%) 3.2% 5.5% 6.6% 5.8% 4.5%
Return on average total assets P340 °4 A iR Bl =

(profit after taxation/average  (BFi1& 3% FI,/F15

total assets) (%) BEE)(%) 1.8% 3.0% 3.4% 3.3% 2.9%

Inventory turnover is re-calculated by the ratio of cost of sales to its FEBEEEHTEAEERAEFLHFENL XK -
average inventory.

112 Annual Report 2015 =& —RFF



8

i
Perennial




	Cover

	Contents
	Corporate Information
	Mission Statement
	Corporate Profile
	Chairman’s Statement
	Management Discussion and Analysis
	Corporate Governance Report
	Directors’ Report
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Income Statement
	Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
	Financial Highlights
	Back Cover



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /All
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (Japan Color 2001 Coated)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.6
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /sRGB
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness false
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
    /CFangSong-Light
    /CGuLi-Bold
    /CGuYin-Bold
    /CHei-UltraBold
    /CHei2-Bold
    /CHei2-Xbold
    /CHei3-Bold
    /CJNgai-Bold
    /CKan-Xbold
    /CNganKai-Bold
    /CO2Yuen-XboldOutline
    /COYuen-Xbold
    /COYuen-XboldOutline
    /CPo-Bold
    /CPo3-Bold
    /CSong3-Medium
    /CSu-Medium
    /CXLi-Medium
    /CXing-Medium
    /CXingKai-Bold
    /CYuen-SemiMedium
    /MBei-Bold
    /MHei-Bold
    /MHei-Light
    /MHei-Medium
    /MHei-Xbold
    /MKai-Medium
    /MKai-SemiBold
    /MLi-Bold
    /MNgai-Bold
    /MSung-Light
    /MSung-Medium
    /MSung-Xbold
    /MYuen-Light
    /MYuen-Medium
    /MYuen-Xbold
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages false
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 200
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.40
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages false
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 200
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.40
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages false
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 300
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<
    /CHT <>
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /BleedOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToRGB
      /DestinationProfileName (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
      /DestinationProfileSelector /UseName
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles true
      /MarksOffset 0
      /MarksWeight 0.283460
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /NA
      /PageMarksFile /JapaneseWithCircle
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
    <<
      /AllowImageBreaks true
      /AllowTableBreaks true
      /ExpandPage false
      /HonorBaseURL true
      /HonorRolloverEffect false
      /IgnoreHTMLPageBreaks false
      /IncludeHeaderFooter false
      /MarginOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetadataAuthor ()
      /MetadataKeywords ()
      /MetadataSubject ()
      /MetadataTitle ()
      /MetricPageSize [
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetricUnit /inch
      /MobileCompatible 0
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (GoLive)
        (8.0)
      ]
      /OpenZoomToHTMLFontSize false
      /PageOrientation /Portrait
      /RemoveBackground false
      /ShrinkContent true
      /TreatColorsAs /MainMonitorColors
      /UseEmbeddedProfiles false
      /UseHTMLTitleAsMetadata true
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [600 600]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


